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Ms. Renee Messing and Ms Shannon Small of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP will make a presentation on
the financial results of the year 2013.

The 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), a financial highlights presentation and a
required communications letter from CliftonLarsonAllen LLP are attached for this agenda item.

Ms. Messing and Ms Small will be available to answer questions from Common Council Members
regarding her presentation or questions about the above reports.
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Motion to receive and place on file the 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR),
and the required communications letter from CliftonLarsonAllen LLP.







Finance Committee and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Franklin, Wisconsin

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the City)
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated May __,
2014. We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities under auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as.certain information related to
the pianned scope and timing of our audit. Professianal standards also reqmre that we communicate to
you the folfowing information related to our audit.

Significant audit findings
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of: approprtate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by City of Franklin, Wis nsin are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. £

Ne new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2013. S

We noted no transactions entered jnio :iby the entity during the year for which there is a lack of
authoriiative guidance or consensus -All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period '

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates arez_ n integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on managements knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the financial
statements were:

e The City is self-insured for its health and dental claims. Management's determination of
estimated claims and judgments are based on historical loss levels for health claims.

« Management records an expense and related liability for the difference between the other
postemployment expense and the amount paid on behalf of retirees and employees for health
and life insurance benefits. This additional liability, termed net OPEB obligation, is an estimate
that is determined through the use of an actuarial study performed by an outside organization.



e I L e b e

« Management also records an expense and relasted lability for the difference between the
accrued pension expense and the amount paid on behalf of retirees and employees for pension
benefits. This additional liability, termed net pension obligation, is an estimate that is determined
through the use of an actuarial study performed by an outside organization.

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear,

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing ‘with management in performmg ‘and completing our
audit. :

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstate_m_géihté identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them. tci' the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them ‘of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements.

Disagreements with management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with- management is a financial accounting, reporting, or

auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our’ satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. No such.disagreements arose during our audit.

Management representations

We have requesied certain representatlons from management that are included in the attached
management representation I,_et_ter dated May __, 2014,

Management consulta_tiq_::f?s with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consuitation
involves application of an accounting principle to the entity's financial statements or a determination of
the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consuitations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matlers, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relahonshlp and our responses
were not a condition to our engagement.



Audits of group financial statements

We noted no matters related to the group audit that we consider to be significant to the responsibilities
of those charged with governance of the group.

Gther information in doctiments containing audited financial statements

With respect fo the required supplementary information (RSI} accompanying the financial statements,
we made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RS, including whether
the RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the
methods of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons
for any such changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying
the measurement or presentation of the RGl. We compared the RSI for consistency with management’s
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained
during the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these hmlte” procedures do not provide
sufficient evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

With respect to the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table
of contents (collectively, the supplementary information) accompanying the financial statements, on
which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, contenty and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not"ohanged from the prior period or the reasons for
such changes, and the infarmation is appropriate and"bomplete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconcited the supplementary information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial stateme s or to the financial statements themselves. We have
issued our report thereon dated May 2

Other information is being included |ns,xocuments containing the audited financial statements and the
audltors report thereon Our responstbtilty for such other information does not extend beyond the

such other information is properly stated and do not have an obligation to perform any procedures to
corroborate other informatign.contained in such documents. As required by professional standards, we
read the introductory section and the statistical tables listed in the table of contents (the other
information) in order {0 d‘entn‘y material inconsistencies between the audited financial statements and
the other information. We did not identify any matenal inconsistencies between the other information
and the audited financial statements.

* k%

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Finance Committee and
Common Council and management of City of Franklin, Wisconsin and is not intended to be, and should
not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
May | 2014



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Finance Committee and Common Council

City of Franklin, Wisconsin

Franklin, Wisconsin

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govérnment Auditing Standards
issued by the Compiroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggrex jate remaining fund information
of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended Decémber 31, 2013, and the related
notes fo the financial statements, which collectively comprise the-City of Franklm Wisconsin's basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon datedMay xx, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financiai Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financia ements, we considered the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin's internal contral over financial reportingiéinternal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for th pose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressiigan opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin's internal control. Accordingly, se’do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of Franklin, Wisconsin’s internal control

A deficiency in internal control ex1st~s when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, indhe normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstat ents on a timely basis. A materfal weakness is a deficiency or a

misstatement of the entity* sﬂnanmal statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A srgmfma it deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than’a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Frankiin, Wisconsin's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of [aws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financiai statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that festing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of-an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the enfity’s” internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Milwaukee Wisconsin
May xx, 2014
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April 24, 2014

Citizens of Franklin, Honorable Mayor and Common Council members:

introduction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Repart of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2013, is hereby submitted. State law requires that all local
governments with a population over 25,000 publish a complete set of financiai statements
that are presented in conformity with general accepted accounting nciples {GAAP) and
audited Iin accordance with generally accepted auditing s‘[andar vy a firm of licensed
certified public accountants.

This report consists of management’s representations conca;r”"mg the finances of the City of
Franklin (City). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of all of the information presented in this repart. To provide a reasonable basis
for making these representations, managemen “of the City has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is desighed both to protect the government's
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compsle sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City’s financial statements.j "onform|ty with GAAP. Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh the behefits, the City's comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to pProvide reasonable rather than absolute assurance
that the financial statements will be fi ee from material misstatement. As management, we
assert that, to the best of our km‘_ dge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in ali material respects, “All‘disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City’ s finanClal activities have been included in this report.

The City’s financial statsements have been audited by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, a firm of
certified public accountarsts experienced in auditing governmental entities. The goal of the
independent audit is. i@ provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the
City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, are free of material misstatement, The
independent ail Ttwmvolves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures<in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial staterents for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.
The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section
of this report.

GAAPF requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 24, 2014

City Profile
The City of Franklin, incorporated in 1956, is located in the southwestern corner of
Milwaukee County. The City is 34.5 square miles in size and has a population of 35,810.
Over the iast ten years the City has experienced an average annual population increase of
1.4% per year. The city is a residential community (73.0%) with a growing commercial and
industrial base (27.0%). It is considered to be one of the more desirable communities in the
Milwaukee metropolitan area in which to live and work. The City provides a typical range of
municipal services for a suburban community including police, fire protection, emergency
medicai/paramedic, maintenance of streets and other infrastructure, library, public health
services, recreational activities, building inspection, zoning control, refuse collection,
recycling collection, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water services, both construction and
maintenance. The City is authorized to levy property tax on real and personal property
located within its boundaries to support the services provided.

The City operates under the mayor/council form of government™Policy making and
legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of a mayor and six council
members. The governing councll is responsible, among ;cher things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees a hiring a city attorney. The
City's Mayor is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing
council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of th ernment and for appointing the
heads of the various departments. The Council ig eleeted, by district, on a non-partisan
basis. The Mayor and Council members serve staggered three-year terms. The City is
organized into departments, headed by ten offictals appointed by the Mayor or Director of
Administration and confirmed by the Common ’Qounc:l Numerous boards, commissions and
committees allow for citizen involvement in government by providing a forum for policy input
to the Council and guidance to the d ments. Library service is provided through a
separate Library Board that functions, like"a department of the City and engages the Library
Director. Water service is provrded

rough a separate Water Ulility that functions like a
department of the City. These two, areas therefore have been included as an integral part of
the City’s financial statements.- Ihe City also is financially accountable for a legally separate
Community Development Authonty (Authaority}. The Authority’s activities are reported within
the City’s financial statements Additional information on the Authority can be found in Note
1 in the notes to the fﬁancaal statements.

The budgetary pm e s serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control
system. The @b;ectwe of the budgetary process is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embsdied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Common Council.
The preparation of a forecast for the existing programs for the following year is prepared
during July and August. Departmental requests for personnel changes and new capital
outlay expenditures are made by the middie of August. The Mayor then reviews the forecast
including recommended personnel and capital outlay expenditures and determines by mid
August the personnel and capital outlay expenditures that will be included in the initial
departmental requested budgets. The departments take this information and submit their
requested budgets by the end of August. The budgets are reviewed and the Mayor submits
his recommended budget by the middle of September. The Council reviews the
recommended budget and agrees on a proposed budget by mid October. The Council is
required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget in early November, and then
adopts a final budget in mid November. The adopted budget is prepared by fund, function
(e.g. Public Safety), and department (e.g. Police). Transfers of appropriations between
. funds, functions or department reqguire the approval of the governing council. Budget-to-
actual comparisons are provided in this report for each governmental fund with an adopted
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Mayor, Commeon Council and Citizens
April 24, 2014

budget. The General Fund comparison is presented in Exhibit & as part of the basic
financial statements for the governmental funds and in Schedules 3 & 4 of the
supplementary information. For governmental funds other than the General Fund with
adopted budgets, this comparison is presented in the supplementary information section of
this report.

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understoed when
considered from the broader perspective of the environment that the City operates.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The economic activity in Franklin in both the residential and the non-residential sectors was
stable. The 65 units of new residential construction was up 18.1% from 2012 but 84.7%
below the 423 units per year averaged prior to the recession. The valué of non-residential
construction decreased 89.6% from 2012 and 95.2% below the.average value realized
averaged the three years before the recession. Prospects 4n; 2014 for residential,
commercial and industrial development are anticipated to be better han 2013 levels.

ual rate of 2.6% since 2004.

Estimated actual property values have grown at an average
The new growth net of TIF Districts was $34.6 million i 13, $19.2 miliion in 2012, and
$10.9 million in 2011. The growth in 2014 is expecteddo:be in the $15 to $20 million doliar
range reflecting the level of economic activity. Gfowt after 2013 is expected to trend to
levels higher than the past few years. The histor Bf higher growth has allowed the City to
maintain a relatively low municipal tax rate while:still funding the increased cost of services
required as a result of the City’s growth.

Residential Growth

Over the past ten years, residen_tjgaii aluation has grown at an average annual rate of 2,1%.
In 2013, permits for 65 new equivalent residential units were issued. The increase from the
prior year reflects the contmued slow housing market in residential construction. Lingering
effects of the slowdown will keep growth from new construction in 2014 at about the same
level as 2013. Longer;?ange the City has the largest developable land in the County and

remains attractive to_ |lderS and potential residents.

Commercial an I Industrial Growth

QOver the past ten years, commercial and industrial valuation has increased at an average
annual rate of 4.3%. In 2013 17 building permits were issued for commercial and industrial
projects. The value of those projects decreased by 89.7% from the 2012 level.

In 2005, two TIF Districts (#3 & #4) were established on the eastern side of the City. The
two districts have equalized value tax increments of $63 and $38 Million, respectively.

Anticipated residential growth will continue to place demands on the commercial sector for
goods and services that, in turn, is expected to continue the trend of commercial growth.
Expansion of the commercial and industrial tax base is a goal of the City with respect to the
overall tax rate. Currently 73.0% of the City’s property value is residential up from 72.7% in
the prior year. f-uture tax relief will need to come from industrial and commercial tax base
expansion.
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 24 2014

Organizational and Service Growth

The 2013 year was a year where overall revenue slightly exceeded projections. The one
notable exception was investment earnings which continued to be adversely affected by the
exceptionally low available interest rates. The growth in fund balance was achieved due fo
the under spending in approved budgets by departments.

2013 was a City-wide property revaluation year. The last reassessment was done in 2010.
Performing revaluations on a regular basis is in line with the Commaon Council policy to
scheduie a revaluation every three years to keep property values in line with current market
values. The State determined that the local assessments after reassessments were 98.3%
of fair value. The estimated aciual value of City properties was approximately $3.4 biilion.

The challenge for the operating departments in 2013 was {o continue to maintain the
service levels at a time of slightly increasing revenue to the City and growth of 1.0% in new
properties.

Internal Controls

The City's internal control structure is subject to ongoing e
City is responsible for ensuring that an adequate interndlcontrol structure is in place to
ensure compliance with laws, regulations and good financial policies. The results of the
City’s audit for the fiscal year ended December 31,.2048 provided no instances of materiai
weaknesses in the internal control structure or slgmf;cant viclations of applicable laws or
regulations. As a recipient of federal and stat ““f:nancnal assistance, if the fevel of grant
expenditures exceeds an established level, ct rrently $500,000, a single audit of grants is
required. The City was not required to have'disingle audit of grants for 2013,

alliation by management. The

Financial Planning

Long range financial planning is+ lace, especially for the capital funds and debt service
funds, to ensure that resourc;es are in place to meet committed projects and ensure that
there is adequate funding %or ’pfmects prior to their approval and that adequate funding is in
place for debt that has bgen ‘or will be incurred, with an appropriate plan for repayment.

Financial Policies

The City maingdins policies on fund balance level, debt policy, investment policies, budget
forecasting poﬁcy and a capitalization policy. These policies, together with conservative
management, has served the City well. The existence of a fund balance enabled the fund
balance to be utilized in 2009 during the revenue decline and replenished in 2010 and 2011
when revenue stabilized. The capital planning has resulted in avoiding the debt markets
since 2008 and a steadily declining debt service levy.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2012.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance
with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.
This was the 20" consecutive year that the City has received this award.
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 24, 2014

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards.
Such report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement FProgram’s reguirements. We will be
submitting the CAFR to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a 2013 Certificate.

Acknowledgments

Preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the Finance Depariment staff. Appreciation is alsc
extended to all other City employees who contributed to its preparation., We also thank the
Mayor, Common Council, and Finance Committee for their interest arid'support in planning
and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible-mz

Respectfully submitted,

Paul Rotzenberg
Director of Finance & Treasurer
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independent Auditors’ Report

Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Franklin, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the entity's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contenis.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of:ihese financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the, dnited States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal<entrol relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from Tiatérial misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these ‘ﬁﬁanual statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing s{an ards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to fﬁancual audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General'of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasenab1e assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procegiures to obtain audit evidenhce about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The }arocedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of }nateria[ misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those rigk*assessments, the auditor considers internat contro! relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair pre ation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in .th ¢ircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of thi entltys internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinicns.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin as of December
31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress on pages 11-24 and 73 he
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
abtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on thé fihancial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Franklin, Wisconsin’s basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the tablé“of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of thg-basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are
the responsibility of management and were derived from-and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basicifinancial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing ﬂd ‘Teconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used toprépare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and othér:additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United-States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual fund financial statements and schiedtles listed in the table of contents are fairly stated. in all
material respects, in relation to the banc hancial staiemenis as a whole.

s

to the auditing procedures applled ih the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
do not express an opinion prgv;de any assurance on them,

Other Reporting Requi 4 by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with, GGVérnment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April XX,
2014, an our cons@gratlon of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal confrol over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not o
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
City of Franklin, Wisconsin's internal conirol aver financial reporting and compliance.

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
April XX, 2014

Page 10



4
!

City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

As management of the City of Franklin (City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our lefter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages 1-5 of this report.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2013, by $210,391,058 (net
position). Of this amount, $8,935,735 (unrestricted net position) r be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

« The City's total net position increased by a net amount of $4,558;
assets increased by $624,556, while unrestricted net position
restricted net position increased by $482,410. The increase ifi
related to reduction in debt. The unrestricted increase was:
restricted increase was due to generation of development

+ The City's governmental funds reported, as of December 31, 2013, had combined ending fund
halances of $18,779,667, a increase of $1,956, 954% m the prior year.

+ The Nonspendable fund balances were $6, 748 381.a decrease of $201,355 due to repayments on
interfund advances. .

s The restricted fund balances in total was
increases in the Capital Projects Funds

s« The assigned fund balances in total g '$3,776,557 had an increase of $198,990 resulted from an
increase in Solid Waste fund balanc

s The unassigned fund balance as of December 31, 2013 for the general fund was $7,230,661 or
approximately 29 percent OI“’tota1 “anticipated 2014 general fund expenditures.

« The City's Governmental attivities debt decreased by $3,790,000 during 2013 from scheduled
repayments. The totai‘fg,eneral ohligation debt that has fo be repaid by the general taxpayer is less
than one quarter of ere percent of the City's equalized valuation. See table 11 for complete
details.

« The City's Business-type activities, through its Sewer Fund, substantially completed an interceptor
sewer on behalf of another government. At December 31, 2013 $24 565,425 of costs were
incurred. A Wisconsin Clean Water Fund Loan has been obtained to finance this project. The
amount received on this loan at December 31, 2013 was $24,565,425. An Intergovernmental
Cooperation Agreement requires the other governmental unit to pay for substantially all of the
costs incurred in this project.

. Net investment in capital
creased by $3,451,776 and
vestment in capital assets was
ainly due the General Fund. The

204,877 a increase of $382,767 primarily from

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.
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Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The statement of net position
presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred cutflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, with
the difference between the categories reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenue
and expenditures are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation and sick leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities)from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs thrcmgh user fees and charges
{business-like activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public
safety, public works, health & human services, culture & recreation’ahd conservation & development.
The business-type activities include the Franklin Water Utility and-ttie Sanitary Sewer fund.

The government-wide financial statements include not only ithe City itself (known as the primary
government) but also a legally separate Community Development Authority for which the City is
financially accountable. Financial information for this blepdéd component unit is reported as part of the
financial information presented for the primary govemment itself.

The government-wide financial statements ca und on Exhibits A & B of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accout at is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or, ob}ectlves The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and dewsnstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be dlwded into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds,

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evalvating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
mformation presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govermnment's near-term
financing decisions. Beoth the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
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The City maintains 16 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General, Debt Service and TIF Districtis Funds, that are
considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining 13 governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds
is provided in the form of combining statements later in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, 1), E and F of this
report. These statements include a budgetary comparison of the General Fund.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Library
Operating Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Street
Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund and the
Franklin Water Utility. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all governmental
funds demonstrating compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary funds

Proprietary funds are used to report the same functions presented:as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide: same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Thé&'pfoprietary fund financial statements
provide separate information for the Franklin Water Utility, Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Intemal

Service Fund.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be fo ”'gvoﬁ Exhihits G, H & | of this report.
Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for-resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are nol cted in the government-wide financial statement because
the resources of those funds are r;of"available to support the City's programs. The fiduciary funds
maintained by the City are the F’r@perty Tax Agency Fund, that records the tax roll and tax collections
for the City and other taxing Junsdlcnons an other agency fund to record that activity and a post
employment benefits trusy*tO .hold funds until needed to pay designated health benefits for eligible

The basic fiduciary: financial statements can be found on Exhibit J & K of this report.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are found
on pages 39 — 73 of this repott.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements, notes and accompanying notes, this report also prasents
certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Franklin’s progress in funding its

pension obligations to its public works employees and its retiree health obligations to eligible full time
employees. Required supplementary information can be found on page 74 of this report.
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The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules section presents combining
statemerts in connection with non-major governmental funds, a detailed budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fund fo demonstrate compliance with the budget complementing the
statement included in the basic governmental fund financial statements, and other information related
to the individual funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.
Schedules 1 to 12.2 can be found on pages 75 — 93 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $210,391,056 and $205,693,482 at the
end of 2013 and 2012, respectively.

CITY OF FRANKLIN NET POSITION
December 31, 2043 and 2012

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
2013 2012 2013

Totat
2013 2012

Current and
other assets § 49495682 § 47521676 § 20,922 $ 27973087 $ 79417888 § 75494783
Capital assets 114,469 508 115,676,557 89;@95?484 809,398,082 203,564,682 205,074,639
Total assets 163,865,170 163,108,233 MM*Q_,,E)&”ET,MO 117,371,169 282,982 580 280,569 402

Deferred Quiflows 187474 225,869.. 187,474 225,869
Current liabilities 2,180,414 1,441237 2,995,697 3,631,651 9,917,208
Long-term liabilities 19,738,576 25185817 22119748 44 924 493 41,108,864

Total liabilities 21,928,990 26,627 154 25 119,745 48,556,144 51,026,070
Deferred Inflows 24075719 : - 240:854 _ 24075718

Net position:

Net Investment in
capital assets 104,097 426 89,095,184 89,398,083 193,817,166 193,495,509

Restricted ' 7,360,825 6,878,515 277,230 334,508 7,638,155 7,213,023

Unrestricted 5,817,893 2,466,117 3,017,842 2,518,833 §,935 735 4 984,950

Totalnetposition $ 118,000,800 § 113442058 $ 92390256 § 92251424 § 210391056 § 205693482

The largest portion of the City's net position (approximately 89 and 92 percent, in 2013 and 2012,
respectively) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., iand, buildings, machinery, and equipment);
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital
assets 1o provide services o citizens; consequently, these net position are not available for future
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Investment in capital assets accounted for $193,817,164 and $193,495508 in 2013 and 2012,
respectively of the year end net position. The changes in capital assets were as follows:

Net Change
Capital Asset - in Capital Net
Additions Depreciation  Related Debt Increase

2013 $ 3,188,328 § (4,698,277) $ 1831605 $ 321,656
2012 $ 4,833,307 $ (4,620,056) $ 9,094,441 $ 9,307,692

The major 2013 City projects were an ambulance, snow plow, sireet improvements and the 76"
Street sewer & water mains from Faith to Puetz. The major 2012 City projects contributing to the
increase was the reconsiruction of 112th Street from Oakwood Rd south to County Line Rd, 51
Street from Rawson north to College, the Puetz Rd pumping station and Drexel Water Tower
repainting. Debt repayments each year have resulted in a significant decreasq in capital related debt.

Infrastructure by developers and others contributed to the capitalized.infrastructure through; capital
grants and contributions of governmental activities of approximately $'%22 295 in 2013 and $222,529
in 2012 and through capital grants and contributions for business-typesactivities of $1,197,101 in 2013
and $51,912 in 2012,

An additional portion of the City's net position (3.6% ang .38% in 2013 and 2012, respectively)
represent resources that are subject to external restrlc,tlens on how they may be used. There were
$7,638,155 and $7,213,023 respectively in those ei positions that were restricted to specific
purposes.

The 2013 increase of $425,132 in restricted
activities.

iel-position reported is due principaliy to development

There was a 2012 decrease of $3:338,484 in restricted net position reported in connection with
government-wide activities. The decrease was primarily due to the repayment of the 2005 debt
offering and smaller changes in, @ther restricted funds.

inrestricted net position of $8,935,735 and $4,984,951, in 2013 and 2012,
respectively may be used o meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end
of the current and fpr'“ fiscal years the City reported positive balances in the unrestricted net position
for both the governméntal and for its business-type activities.

The remaining balance jn

There was a 2013 increase of $3,950,784 in unrestricted net position reported in connection with
government-wide activities. The major component was the increase in funds that were used for debt
retirement purposes.

There was a 2012 decrease of $1,261,109 in unrestricted net position reported in connection with
government-wide activities. The major component was the decrease in funds that were temporarily
used for debt retirement purposes reduced by increases in the general fund, development fund,
equipment replacement fund, internal service fund.
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Government-wide activities
The details of changes in net position follow:

City of Franklin Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ending Becember 31, 2013 and 2012

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Revenue
Program revenue;

Charges for services $ 4241404 § 3907327 $ 8647731 § 8503708 § 12,889,135 § 12411035

Operating grants & contributions 1,838,950 2,144,164 - - 1,838,850 2,144,164

Capital grants & contributions 1,659,859 1,240,439 - - 1,659,859 1,240,438
General revenue:

Property taxes 24,097,812 24,152,207 - 24,097,812 24,152,207

Cther taxes 723,985 708,832 - 723,885 708,832

Intergovernmental : 1,620,331 1,590,209 - ; - 1,620,331 1,590,209

Investment eamnings 87,278 784,932 18,669 656,722 1,103,601

Other 68,215 426,161 126,867 108,613 553,028

Total revenue 34,337,834 34,954 271 8,049,244 43,595 407 43,903,515

Expenses:

General government 2,815,287 2,794 AGT - - 2,915,267 2,794 497

Public safety 16,484 847 - - 16,484,847 17,228,769

Public works 8,550,807 - - 6,550,807 8,182,036

Health & human services 658,088 - - 658,088 730,480

Culture & recreation 1,838,760 - - 1,838,700 1,870,573

Conservation & development 422 095 - - 422,095 412 088

Interest on long-term debt 802,56 - - 802,562 1,272,721

VWater - 5,051,835 5,064,145 5,051,835 5,064,149

Sewer S - 4,133,632 3,640,108 4,133,632 3,640,108

Total expenses 207123366 30,491,161 9,185467 __ 8,704,255 38,897,833 _ 39,195416

Increase in net positicn ) )

nefore transfers 4,625,468 4 463 110 72,106 244 989 4,697,574 4,708,098
Transfers (66,726) 1,009,128 66,726 {1.008,126) - -
Change in net position  « 4,558,742 5,472,236 138,832 (764,137) 4,697 574 4,708,098
Net position - beginning | 113,442,058 107,965 822 02,251,424 93,015,561 205,693,482 200,985,383
Net position - ending 5 118,000,800 § 113442058 § 92390256 § 62251424 § 210391056 § 205693482

Governmental activities in 2013 increased the City’s net position by $4,558,741 or 87% of the total
growth in the net position. Elements of this increase are:

« A $1,407,150 surplus in General Government activity

* |ncrease due to the decrease in Long term Debt of $1,649,959

= Decrease in governmental activities capital assets net of depreciation of $1,040,447

» Netincrease in TIF District activities of $2,307,794

=  Netincrease from internal service activities of $77,500

» Net decrease from special assessment activities of $51,651

= Net increase from development activities of $437 437

» Net increase from non major funds activities of $76,824
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Governmental activities in 2012 increased the City's net position by $5,472,236 or 116% of the total
growth in the net position. Elements of this increase are;

« A $3427,160 surplus in General Government activity

= Increase due to the decrease in Long term Debt of $1,551,741

* Increase in governmental activities capital assets net of depreciation of $365,762

» Netincrease in TIF District activities of $2,285,384

= Net increase from internal service activities of $170,856

= Net decrease from special assessment activities of $407.137

= Net increase from development activities of $719,691

¢ Net increase from non major funds activities of $358,780

Expenses by Function - Governmental Acliyities
$18,000,000 -
$16,000,000 -
$14,000,000
$12,000,000 4
$10,000,000 -
$8,000,000
$6,000,000 -
$4,000,000 A
$2,000,000 A
General Public safety i Hiﬂt_saind Culiure and Cons:rn;;anon Interest on
government PR servises recreation development tong-term debt
o | §2,915.267 6,650,807 | 698,088 1,838,700 422,095 802,562
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Revenue by Source - Governmental Aclivities

Charges for services

o,
12% Capital grants &

contribulions
Cperating grants & 5%
contributions
5%
Intergovernmental
5%

Interest & Other
1%

(Other Taxes
2%

Business-type activities

In 2013, business-type activities increased the ﬁys net position by $138,832 or 3 percent from the

prior year. The key elements of this increase ‘bﬂow

» The increase from operating activiti he change in net position excluding capital contributions
and its related depreciation expehse) was $257,522. The goal of the business activities is to
provide these services at least- a‘break even basis to minimize the cost to the users. Both the
water and sewer activities ar 'Z:urrentiy meeting this goal.

+  Depreciation expense r¢ latéd to contributed assets - $1,315,791

ities decreased the City's net position by $764,137 or .2 percent from the

ts of this decrease follow:

« The increase;r" operatlng aciivities (the change in net position excluding capital contributions
and its related“depreciation expense) was $492,182. The goal of the business activities is to
provide these services at least a break even basis to minimize the cost to the users. Both the
water and sewer activities are currently meeting this goal.

«  Contributions of water infrastructure - $51,912 consisting of one City project

« Depreciation expense related to contributed assets - $1,308,231

« BPuring 2012, the PSC granted a significant water rate increase to our water supplier. The result
of this rate case was 1o raise both the Water Utility revenue and cost of water purchased.

The following graph compares the 2013 charges for services to the operating expenses for water and
sewer activities.
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Operating Revenue and Expense - Business-type Activities

—_—
$6,000,000 I/ e
£5,000,000 /1 F m]

$4,000.000
33,000,000

52,000,000

$1,000,000

Water
expense Sewer
revenue

Water and Sewer expenses can exceed reven
depreciation from City spending on capital assi
infrastructure that has been installed in recent.
and replacement costs increase, this policy niz

due to the current policy of including only
s/in the rate formula. The large amount of new
rs is the reason for this policy. When maintenance
eed {o be reevaluated.

As shown on the following chari, the Business-type revenue includes capital grants and contributions,

investment earnings and miscellanéous income in addition to charges for services (eperating
revenue).

I

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities

Interest & Other
7%

Capital grants &
Capital grants & contributions -Sewer
contributions -“Water 0%
0% Charges for services -
Water
58%

Charges for services -
Sewer
35%
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds.

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a usefll measure of a
government's nef resources availahle for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $18,779,677, a increase of $1,956,954 from the prior year. At year end the unassigned
fund balance was $2,049,862. Of this total $7,230,661 was for general fund activities. This amount
was offset by deficits in the Debt Service, TIF Districts and Nonmajor Governmental Funds. The Debt
Service fund has an interfund loan with favorable financing and the deficit’Wilt. diminish as revenue is
received from future year property taxes to repay the financing. The TiFRistricts deficit is due to the
favorable type of interim financing selected and will diminish as revenue-is received and used to repay
the financing. :

Health services - $165,848, Library
tional services - $51,476 and Capital

The City has assigned fund balances to the following activit]
services - $579,817, Solid Waste Disposal - $188,307, Reg
Projects - $2,791,111.

Qutside party resfrictions have resulted in restricﬁggﬁjhd balances 1) to pay debt service - $606,945,
2) for utility improvements - $443,438 3) for develepment purposes - $1,765,168, 4) for donations -
$102,326 and 5) for advances to other funds - $3:287,000.

The City alse has nonspendable fund baiances to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because it has already been committed f@r ‘prepaid expenses and inventories - $48,341, for advances
to other funds - $505,040 and for a FIF-District Note Receivable - $6,195,000.

The General Fund is the cryefsw pera‘{mg fund of the City. As of December 31, 2013, the total fund
balance of the general fund was $7,781,567 of which $7,230,661 was unaSS|gned This unassigned
fund balance represents.a brox;mately 29% of 2014 general fund budgeted expenditures.

The total fund balance of the General Fund increased by $1,279,432 in fiscal year 2013. Actual
revenue was more'tian budget revenue by $326,042 or 1.3 percent. Changes in employee benefits
reduced Public Safety costs significantly. Employees are paying a larger share of health benefit
premiums and retirement costs. Also, an actuarial assumption change reduced the retiree health cost.

The Debt Service Fund has a total deficit fund balance of $1,482,767, $606,945 is restricted for the
payment of debt service and a deficit of $2,099,712 is related to advances made from the Internal
Services fund. The fund balance increase of $1,060,500 related to the repayment of interfund
advances.

The TIF Districts Fund has a nonspendable fund balance of $6,195,000 and an unassigned fund
deficit of $3,080,379 for a net fund balance of $3,114,621. The unassigned fund deficit is due to
borrowing and investing those funds in infrastructure. The nonspendable fund balance is due to a
$6.195 million note receivable issued under a development agreement.
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The Nonmajor Governmental Funds have a total fund balance of $9,376,256. The fund balance
increase of $514,261 came principally from special assessments (impact fees).

The City's Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the govermment-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water Utility at the end of the year amounted to $634,224, a increase
of $230,843 from the prior year. Total net position increase was a result of operations.

Unrestricted net position of the Sanitary Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $2,383,618,
an increase of $295,165 from the prior year. Total net position increased due the capital contributions
on contributed assets.

The enterprise funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H and | of this report.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenue exceeded the budget by $326,042 with small increases 4
various categories. Investment earnings declined to a loss of $11,5%
market rates declined further. Licenses and Permits increased or
Building Permits. Ambulance fees drove the increase Public
transfer of $279,255 was recorded related to capitalized Highg

decreases from budget in
153,514 less than budget as
igger than expected increase in
arges for Services. In addition, a
Department projects.

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted expendatures by $2,152,545. The largest favorable
variance was in General Government. The City estabtished a $950,000 restricted contingency reserve
1o preserve shared revenue from the State. That "ohhngency was not needed. Within Public Safety,
employees began to pay a larger share of héalth premiums and retirement costs. In addition, a
change in Actuarial assumptions reduced the-Retiree Health costs from what had been in the budget.
The combined impact was a significant red Jction in expenditures compared to the prior year.

Revenue was favorable to budgeted ﬁém creased activity levels. Expenditures came in below budget
as the contingency reserve ‘nt needed resulting in the general fund balance increasing by
$1,287.450.
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Capital assets.

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of
December 31, 2013, amounts to $203,564,692 net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings and machinery and
equipment.

City's Investment in Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Land $ 24958327 § 25012541 % 521,225 § 521,225 § 25479552 § 25533768
Buildings and

improvements 24 225 482 24,180,167 3,438,927 3,438,927 27,664,419 27,619,004
Impravements e

other than buidings 92,173,188 90,925,168 109,764,750 108,585.571 201,937,938 198,480,738
Machinery and

and equipment 17,571,157 16,953,185 2,799,107 ,794,582 20,370,264 19,748,167
Construction

in process 152,923 487 b&7 51; 113,289 210,865 600,856

Total capital assets 159,081,087 157,558,648 116;:581*;‘951 115,423,974 275,663,038 2729826822

Less Accumulated

(

27,486,767) {26,025,882) (72,098,346) (67,907 983)

depreciation (44,611 579) (41,882,061)

Capital assets net of

depreciation $ 114469508 § 145676557 § 89095184 $ 80308082 $ 203564582 $ 205,074,639

The total decrease in the City's nvestment in capital assets net of depreciation for the current

fiscal year was $1,509,847 of 0%

For further details on ca| a;set activity. refer to Note 1(D)5 and Note 4(D) of the Notes to Financial

Statements and Sch

Long-term debt &

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 5
percent of its total equalized valuation. At December 31, 2013, the City had general obligation note
and bond issues outstanding totaling $42,445423 The current debt limitation for the City is
$170,713,830. The City's current outstanding general obligation debt is 25% of the statutory debt
timit. In the last 15 years the City has not exceeded 34% of the statutory debt limit.

The City's present rating from Moody's for its general obligation debt is "Aat". In January, 2012, the
Franklin Sewer Fund signed a Clean Water Fund Note with a notional amount of $27,562,754 to fund
the construction of a sewer interceptor in the City. At December 31, 2013 $24,565423 had been
drawn down on the Notes. The Notes have a 20 year repayment schedule to May, 2031. The City has
an intergovernmental agreement with the Metropolitan Milwaukee Sewer District to pay the City the
required interest and principal with payments on the Clean Water Fund loan beginning in 2015.
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The Franklin Water Utility has borrowed $60,000 from the City’s General Fund. Recent capital
expenditures have resulted in this borrowing. The advance is fo be repaid from the Water Ulility cash
flow. The utility's plan is to make future infrastructure improvements including water main replacement
and new water service from current reserves and from City collected impact fees.

City of Franklin's Qutstanding Debt (All purposes)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
General obligation
Notes $ 9695000 § 12865000 $ 24565423 § 22064833 § 34260423 $ 34,92983:
Bonds 8,185,000 8,805,000 - - 8,185,000 8,805,00(
Total $ 17880000 § 21670000 § 24565423 § 220648 § 42445423 § 4373483:

Additional information of the City's long-term debt can be found i in note 4(F), Schedule 5 and Tables

11 — 13 in the statistical section of the report.

Other Changes of Significance

Post Employment Health Care Benefits

1€ benefits to certain retiree groups from the date of

y’s portion of health care cost was recognized as an
AAAAAA paid. Funding for those costs was provided out of the

current operating budget of the Clty {h 5 was referred to as financing on a pay as you go basis.

The City of Franklin provides retiree health
retirement until age 65 Prior to 2008 the

The Government Accounting Siandards Board (GASB) issued Statement #45 effective for the City of
Franklin on January 1, 2008, {hat:sald that the expense of these benefits has to be recognized over
the working lives of the employees The Common Councit concluded that the City of Franklin should
not anly recognize the e’xpeﬂse on its financial statements but should fund those amounts out of its
general revenue starhng in 2008 with the establishment of a section 115 trust. The actuarial computed
annual required cofitribution under GASB #45 for 2013 was $523,342 and for 2012 was $837,575.
This reduction was tHe result of removing a Affordable Care Act tax from the projected expenses in
the Actuarial Assumptions.

More detailed information can be found in footnote 5C.
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Economic Factors, Tax Rates and Next Year's Budgets

« The unemployment rate as of December 31, 2013 for the City was 4.8%, Milwaukee County which
includes the City, is 7.2%. This compares with an unemployment rate of 6.2% for the State of
Wisconsin.

« The local tax rate change for operations for the current and prior two years were (0.30)%,
(7.04)%, and 1.99%, respectively.

* The tax levy change for the current and prior two years were, $42,000, ($498,000), and $539,000,
respectively.

« The 2014 budgets require a local tax rate that increases 8.8%% which together with growth will
result in no change in tax levy. A revaluation of the City in 2013 drove the rate increase.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those with an
interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the ipfofmation provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance &
Treasurer, City of Franklin 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, W| 53132+

General information or more detailed financial and budget informiation relating to the City of Franklin
can be found at the City's website, www franklinwi.gov - Finance.Department tab.
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Exhibit A
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2013
Govemmental Business-type
Aclivities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 15,317,237 % 1,750,291 § 17,067,528
Receivables
Accounts receivable 1,087,779 2,196,379 3,284,158
Interest receivable 35,413 - 85,413
Taxes receivable 24,504,398 315,082 24,819,480
Note receivable 6,195,000 - 6,185,000
Special assessments receivable 1,402,776 - 1,402,776
Internal balances 68,643 (68,643) ~
Due from other governments 222,935 - 222935
Prepaid items 79,762 80,264
Inventories 26,679 26,679
Long term advances 505,040 -
Restricted cash and investments - 277,230
Bue from other governments - long term - 25,451,385
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Land 24.958,327 . 25,479,552
Buildings and improvements 15,648,007 2,287,603 17,933,610
Machinery and equipment 6,566,653 1,176,795 7,743,450
Improvements other than buildings 67,145?5@ 85,051,619 152,197,215
Construction in progress 152,923 57,842 210,865
Total assets 163?‘7§65,1 70 118,512,370 282,477,540
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES -
Unamortized refunding costs 187,474 - 187474
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,085,655 1,319,267 2,404,922
Accrued liabilities 737,720 18,783 756,503
Due to other governments ™~ 8,625 - 8,625
Accrued interest ) 245,728 100,687 347 415
Special deposits 111,686 2,500 114,186
Noncurrent liahilitie
Due within one’yvea 10,893,721 1,159,364 12,053,085
Due in morgthan one year 8,844,855 23,521,513 32,366,368
Total liabilities 21,928,990 26,122,114 48,051,104
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent year property faxes 24,222,854 - 24,222,854
NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets, 104,721,982 89,005,184 193,817,166
Restricted for
Debt service 682,442 - 682,442
Utility improvements 1,523,989 - 1,523,989
Development 5,052,168 - 5,052,168
Donations 102,326 - 102,326
Sewer equipment replacement - 277,230 277,230
Unrestricted 5,917,893 3,017,642 8,935,735
Total net position $ 118,000,800 $ 92390256 % 210,391,056

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhihit C
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2013

Nonmajor Totai
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental

General Service Districts Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments § 7,288,853 § 564,739 § 231,718 § 5,963,157 § 14,048,468
Receivables

Accounis receivable 905,046 - - 78,642 684,688
Interest receivable 45,145 - 40,268 - 85,413
Taxes receivable 16,253,222 1,679,494 2,526,924 4044 758 24,504,398
Note receivable - - 6,195,000 - 6,195,000
Special assessments receivable - 204,675 - 1,198,101 1,402,776
Due from other funds 133,796 - - 757 134,553
Due frem cther gavermments 3,346 - 1,200 218,389 222,935
Prepaid items 18,187 - - 3,075 22,262
Inventaries 26,679 - 26,679
Advances to other funds 505,040 - 3,792,040
TOTAL ASSETS $ 25180314 § . 24489808 § $ 51,418,212

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 651,885 $ 326,613 % 978,796
Accrued liabilities 323,785 34,835 358,620
Due to other funds 65,910 - - 65910
Due 1o other govemments 6,238 - 2,386 8,625
Spedial deposits 111,686 - - 111,686
Advance from other funds - 3,313,000 - 5,450,000
Total kiabilities 1,159,505 3,313,298 363,834 6,973,637
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Uneamed & unavaitable revenue 16,239,242 2,667,182 5,054,789 25,665,808
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT}
Nonspendaible:
Inventories and prepaid items - - 2,475 48,341
TIF district note receivable * - - 6,195,000 - 6,195,000
Advances to other funds 505,040 - - - 505,040
Restricied:
Debt service - 606,945 - - 606,945
Advances 1o other funds - - - 3,287,000 3,287,000
Utility improvements - - - 443 438 443,438
Development - - - 1,765,168 1,765,168
Donations - - - 102,326 102,326
Assigned:
Health services - - - 165,846 165,846
Library services ) - - - 579,817 579,817
Salid waste - - - 188,307 188,307
Recreational services - - - 51,478 51,476
Capital projects - - - 2,791,111 2,781111
Unassigned (deficit) 7,230,661 {2,099,712) {3,080,379) {708) 2,048 862
Total fund balances {deficit) 7,781,567 {(1,492,767) 3,114,621 9,376,256 18,779,677

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES {DEFICIT} § 25,180,314 § 2448808 § 8985111 $ 14794879 § 51,419,212

See accompanying notes fo the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmential Funds
To the Statement of Net Position
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Fund balances - total governmental funds $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources
and are therefore are not reported in the funds

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as unearned
revenue or deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial statements
but are recognized as revenues when earned in the governmet-wide
statements

Special assessments
Accrued interest receivable

Internal Service Fund net position

Lang-term liabilities appliable to the City's governmental agtivities are not
due and payable in the current period, and accordingly,.are not reported
as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not aecried in
governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due

General obligation debt

Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Unamortized refunding.£
Accrued Interest

Exhibit C. 1

18,779,677

114,469,508

1,402,776
40,268

3,108,401

(17,880,000)
(1,773,696)
(84,880)
187,474
(246,728)

gbvernmentai activities §

118,000,800

Net change in net position of.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Exhibit D

Nonmajor Total
Deht TIE Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes 17,078,994 1,650,000 2,410,131 3,682,672 24,821,797
Intergovernmental revenue 2,571,374 - 408,245 458 422 3,438,041
Licenses and permits 812,357 - - - 812,357
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 411,795 - - - 411,795
Public charges for services 1,473,039 - - 1,164,568 2,837,607
Special assessments - 65,706 - 1,417,644 1,483,350
Intergovernmental charges for services 162,308 - - - 162,308
Investrment earnings (loss) (11,514) 7,899 122,476 104,945 223,806
Miscellaneous revenue 156,414 - - 132,051 288,465
Total revenue 22,754,767 1,723,605 2,940 852. 6,960,302 34,379,526
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2,709,182 - 1,468 2,710,650
Public safety 15,447 159 - 18,458 15,465,617
Public works 3,386,737 - 1,469,133 4855870
Health and human services 635,959 - 32,752 668,711
Culture, recreation and education 150,887 - 1,383,781 1,514,668
Conservation and development 360,649 40,757 15,359 416,765
Capital outlay - 3,196 3,188,510 3,172,706
Debt service
Principal 620,000 3,170,000 - 3,790,000
Interest 409,381 624,138 - 1,033,519
Total expenditures 1,029,381 3,838,091 6,070,461 33,628,506
Excess {deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 694,224 (897,239) 889,841 751,020
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USXI?ES”)‘
Sale of capital assets - - - 75,558 75,5659
Transfers in 1,325,220 366,276 - 1,077,661 2,769,157
Transfers out ) (109,982) - - (1,528,800) {1,638,782)
Total other financing sources and uses 1,215,238 366,276 - (375,980) 1,205,934
Net change in fund balances 1,279,432 1,060,500 (897,239} 514,261 1,956,954
Fund balances {deficit) - beginning 6,502,135 (2,553,267} 4,011,860 8,861,995 16,822,723
Fund balances (deficit) - ending $ 7,781,587 $ (1,492,767) $ 3114621 § 9,376,256 § 18,779,677

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 29




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense or losses when disposed of.

Capital Outlays
Depreciation
Loss on disposal

Capital assets contributed from governmental activities to
the sewer utility,

Contributed capital assets are reported as revenues in the
statement of activities.

The issuance of long-term debt ( e.g. notes, leases) prowde  current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the ‘repayment of
the principal on long-term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds. Neither transactiofs however, has
any effect on net position.

Principal paid on long-te;

Government funds report the effects of e}’n
discounts and refunding losses when' {he debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and, amortlzed in the statement of
activities. This amount is thefiet effect of the differences in the
treatment of these items.

Some expenses reporte e statement of activities do not
require the use of li ent financial resources and therefore, are
not reported as expendltures in the government funds

Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Accrued interest payable

Revenue in the governmental funds that provides current
financial resources but has been previously reported as
revenue in the statement of activities

Net special assessments
Accrued interest receivables

Internal service fund change in net position

Fxhibit E

1,956,954

2,269,100
(2,950,902)
(73,535)

(489,162)

37.451

3,780,000

(38,395)

(121,263)
6,436
47,242

51,651
(4,355)

77,500

Net change in net position of governmental activities 5

4,558,742

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit F
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorahle
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 18,132,000 $ 18,132,000 $ 18,209,389 § 77,369
Intergovernmental revenue 2,542,600 2.542 600 2,571,374 28,774
Licenses and permits 739,000 753,000 912,357 159,357
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 450,000 450,000 411,795 (38,205)
Public charges for services 1,323,500 1,323,500 149,538
Intergovernmental charges for services 125,000 162,308 37,308
Investment earings (loss) 142,000 11,514) (153,514)
Miscellaneous revenue 91,000 156,414 65,414
Total revenue 23,545,100 23,885,142 328,042
EXPENDITURES
Currend )
General government 3,590,863 3,590,338 2,709,182 881,156
Public safety 16,168,265 16,175,490 15,451,459 724,031
Public works 3,4}9?;@.59 3,504,359 3,374,419 129,940
Health and human services 159 659,002 635,959 23,043
Culture and recreation 171,901 174,887 (2,986)
Conservation and development 408,010 360,649 47 361
Total expenditures 24,508,100 22,706,555 1,802,545
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (950,000) (950,000) 1,178,587 2,128 587
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in £ - - 194,845 194,845
Transfers out - (85,982) (85,982) -
Net change in fun
budgetary basi§ (850,000} (1,035,982) 1,287,450 2,323,432
Adjustments to generally accepted
accolnting principles basis
2013 encumbrances 13,482 13,482 13,482 -
2012 encumbrances (21,500) {21,500) {21,500) -
Net change in fund balance - generally
accepted accounting principles basis (958,018) {1,044,000) 1,279,432 2,323,432
Fund Balances - beginning 6,502,135 6,502,135 6,502,135 -
Fund Balances - ending $ 5544117 $ 5458135 $ 7,781,567 % 2,323,432

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Page 31



2¢ abed

psnujuon
09828 G/8'9,2'6LL GZF oLV 0L GeZPLE'ZL 0/1'982' LY 06G'208'9%
- 668.'CZ8'WLL  ZBE'06B'LG Z6Y'0%5'69 oGL'zvl 'Sy L0£'€82'GY
- ¥91 66068 9Z6'G59 Y £1/8'118'EY 95122 Gy LOL'ERZ 'Sy
- (los'98v'2z)  (629'/6Z2L) (2sz'ves’cy) (coz'szi’el) (GLG2os+l)
- [AZWAS Z£0'08 00Z'i2 1£7°€9 Zyl 08
- 0166142 Z88'£89 ¥12'08. 000°LLL'E £68'810'C
- 0S.'79.'60L  898'GGZ'ES Zr0'G96'eS £0/°662'55 80/'86.'G
- LT6'8EP'E £EL'GNO"L £EL'G09'L P6GCEgL ¥65'eeg’
- GZ2'128 ope'ese 0Fe'9se Ge8'ZSL G88.25
- $R8LGY'ST 86 666'CT G8e'LSY ST -
- 082’112 805 ¥EE 0£2'24T -
09£°265'E 9/0'CBE'Y 7092’z £B.'84/T PLOWPS L £82'6L9'L
000'e8l'z - - -
00648 208 - 205
- 2Z8'0¢L 000'LE AN
- - Z280'6Le gas'Lel rri'LGL 6z8'Lel
L60'€04 6.£'961L'C 890°'7L6 169'062'} 90.'90¢€"L
£52'39Z'L ¢ LBZ0GLL L08'6YEL $ 596'Gg $ TTL'HS $
£
Spun4 93iA19g sjelol ..mm%ﬂ G{RP iea) Jualing lea) Jouid feaj jualing
fewtajul Jea )\ RETNE I lamag Ann Aisn

- SalJIAIRYY juanng Alejueg Aeyueg FES1:T 1 1a)epn

|BIUSLULLIBAOL) spun4 as|idiajug - sajIAloy adAl-ssauisng

O HQIYxs

(z1v0z ‘1¢ 19quesa( JO} UDIFRLLLIONE aAljRIRdUOD Yiim)

£L0Z ‘L€ J9quadag
spund Adejaudolyg
UollsSOd J8N jO juswajelg
NISNOOJSIM ‘NITMNYY4 40 ALID

s}asse [e10]
S]18SSE JUDLINOUOU |30

(uonewsldsap pajejnuinase
JO 18U) s)188sE |BIdED 10
uoneaidap pajgnuinooe sss
ssa1fo.id ui uorINIsUo)
uswdinba pue Asuyoey

sfBulp|ing Uy} 8L sjusLUBACIdL|

sslaAoldwi pue sBuip|ing
PUE™
sjasse |eyden
sjuatuuIanob a0 wol) ang
SIUBLUISaAUL PUE LSBD PaloUISay
$)19SSE HIalINJUCH

§)asse Juslng [Blo}
SpUNY 19410 0} S0UBAPY
gosuadxa pledaigd
SusWUIRA0E U310 wWol an(
spuny Jaylo woy ang
a]qenlansal saxe |
SIQBAI9I3) S]UN0I0Y
S9|0BAIRDSY
SJUBLWISAALL pUB |se)
$]3SSE Jualng
S13ssyY



c¢ abed

L0Y'90L°E 9GC°06E°26 $ /88'8/09¥ $ GZLTiY'OF § L8G'TLi'9r $ LEGLLBSE §
LOv'90L'E A AN £61'980°2 819882 18C'0Ey ¥ZZ'veQ
- 0£2°242 Q05'PEE gz Lle - -
- ¥81'560'68 9Z8'659'cy LI8'118'EY 9S1°ZrL'SY L0£'¢82'SY
866'G8Y 519'928'92 8€5'/88'vC 096'L¥9'5Z cegcLL'y 850'G86
- 0¥0'508 - Q00's0S -
- cL5'12s'cg 062'260'22 ZE6'2BY'CT
- Z9t'/S 1G¥'12 185’92
- LGE oY ee £E8'¥90'Z2 LGEPOr'eT -
656'GeYy 590°008'2 8VZ'Sre ¢ 895'Cre’l /1956
- F9T6GL L 8l¢'sz 8LZ0EL'L 9rL'8Z
- 0052 - - 0052
- GOv'661 - 1/68°0L ¥6¥'881
- 189°001 98/°68 - -
00L'8LE €848l it 9l LI0'E 599
852°901 292618 QziilLL'e $ $ 190'%2L $ B/p9'GE. $
spung a2lalag s[ejo] AB3 ) Jua.ng lea) Joktd B3\ JuUaLINg
|ewiagu) deaj amag Aimn Aun
- S3IANDY juaing Arejluesg Aejueg 19312A8 FEIL:TTY
[EJUDLLLIIDAOLY spund asudioiug - saniaoy adf-ssauisng
{(Z10Z ‘1€ 19qwWa33(] Jo} uoljRULIOL SARRIEdWOD Y]Im)
£10Z 'L¢ 19quada(g
spun4 Arejandolyd
Uo[}ISOd }8N JO Juduialels
NISNODSIM ‘NITYNVYHL 40 ALID
{papnpucs)

D HaIyxg

‘sjusWSlels [BIDUBLY By} o) sejou BurAueduicose seg

uonisod jau jejo
pajouisalun
Iusluaoe|dal juswidinba Jemag
1o paYlISay
s)asse |ejided ul JUSWISIAUL 19N
NOILISOd 13N

sapligel jejot
saouenpe wie-buod

Saljjigel JusLINJUoL [BJ0 |
$9JUss(e polesuadwiod paniooy
s|geied sajou uoyehiqo |eisuan

S3I}Eg.I} JUBIINOUON

saijigel| Ju21no 210 ]
suonebiigo wisl-fuo| Jo uoiuod juainy
susodap |gioadg
Spuny 18yjo 03 an(J
sjgefed 1s819)Ul paniooy
salliigel psniody
ajqefed sjunodoy
sajjiged Jusuny
sS3LLavin




e abed

SUSWHES [BoUEUY Y] 0) s&1ou Bulfuedwioone sag

LoY'a01Le $ OSZ'0BL'ZE ¢ /8R'9L0°9F § GTLTLVOF $ /€8°ZI1OF $ LeSIE5F & Buipua - uopisod N
106'920°C vZ¥ L5226 866'96Z'gY £88'9/0'9% £96'85/'9¢% LEG'ZLLeY Buiuuifag - voysod jeN
005°LL zeg'asl (Lrr'gsn) 8£9'CHE (920°989) (300'sgz) uonisod jau ui eBuey s
- {g/efoeL’ L) CI3) (vi5°2 {zz/'150'1) (Log'zgi'L) o sigjsuel|
- - - - - - Ul s18jsuBl ]
- LOL'26L'L - ¥11'602 Zi6'L5 126'18¥ suonnauuod jeydes
00%° 4L o0L'z2 (G62'7L1) (zos'zie) ¥82'8L¥F 298°78E sigjsuel) pue
qiuod fendes al0jag (S50]) SW00L
gr9'cE 7252 76292 (650'9) 182722} 9/67/2 susdxs) snuana) Bugesede-uoy jejo |
- {ozc'ges) {/56'G67) (681'¢8%) - {LEr's) asuadxe Jsalaiyl
- 86c'0r 2142 00¥'z SB0'PZH 866°2¢€ Kipung
8v9'ch 696 LI¥'0Z8 £eL'PLS (gog')) (682'5) {ss0|) sBujures Jusunseu|
(SISNIAXI} INNIAIY ONILVHILONON
(CTIRCTH ¥85'05 (2807102) {90, 790¢) 896v'L6Z 062 7 {ss0() swoou Bupesado
£00'8ZP'C ivL'1BG'R BYL'EPE'S £PF'055'E 8L F90'G B2°900'S sesuadxs Bunessdo jejo .
- 6.0°299 §52'252 ShLL1T 0/6'ev9 9£6'05% UGLBASIUIIPY
- GiC'tpi'L 858719 090'063 S29'190 SLE'Z60°L uoperaidag
£00'6ZF'C £60'281'9 GL0'8b0'7. 0vZ'e8e'z oy £58'96b'C S221AI9S pUE S9fES J0 180D
SISNIJXT ONLLYHALO
GS8'Ziv € L8 4¥9'8 zo0'Zrl'e Le2'EvTe PE8'C0P'S snuanal Buneledo (g0,
- :.m,vm mom_hm @mmkvm Nro_om Iayjo pue mm:_mcma Lmzczauw_ﬁ_ fal=hizTNie ]
- Pr6'CLL - - ! #re'LL 901A195 UOPDS0Id Bl SjeAld
- £59'26¥ - - £G9'z6Y 2801195 uonoejoid aldy signd
- 008'9 - L9L YL 005'9 S8{ES pasaiawun
gee'zly'e - - - - safleyo [ejuep g yilesy dnoin
- £90'056'L h L8P'T59'y 098°CrL'Yy $S(ES Paiajewl jejoL
- 861 S0S “GYeBLL ogi'187 6¥9°97E Aloyine sang
- 192'782 zgc'ogs ¥/£'082 G8ETYE {emisnoy|
- zo5'091'z 565'629 898'09Z'1 178'rEL'y [BIDIBLULICD
- $ 96Z'19G'% $ 4BL'9¥Z8') $ 825B28C 0§ 668'9eL'T $ |eljuapssy
SO|ES pRIsIop
ANNIATH ONILYEIO
SpUng 8J]ALag S[B}O] JEEFWIT, JBaj jualung Jeap Jallg Jeajp yuanng
HUEH] FECTN 1amag Jomag Ann Ann
-85 LVET T o) Aegjueg Mejueg FELTTY P S

|2IUBLIUIZADED

H HGYX3

spung asudiojug - sansanoy adAj-ssauisng

(Z1L0Z '1g 19qWisdag papus Jeak ayj 40} UOJJRLLIOHU] SANRIBAWIOD UYTIM)

£10Z 'L J9qWadaq papud Jes )
spund Aejsisdodd

uaIsod J9N pung up sebueys pue sasuadxy ‘OnuUaAdY JO JUSWSIIG

NISNODSIM ‘NFIMNVHEA 20 ALID



g¢ abad
‘SjusWSe]S {BIoLBUY By 0] salou Buduediuaoe s

pINLUog
83,8971 % 1Z§/20¢ SL2'ER9'L $ BBL'E/EL $ G96'GG $ ZTLPS $
- 0cZiiE 805 vEE Gge'iie - - pajoL]say - sjuaunsaAl| puUe UseD
B94'892°L % LBZ'0SL) LOSBYE'L & BSL'080") $ §95%'GS $ ZZL'vs $ PaIOMISIUN - SIUBLLIS3AU| pUB USBD
694392 § 12512072 Gl8'cgy’y § 88 eL8 ) [T TN ¢ ZTLPS $ Buipuy - sjusjeainbe yseo pue ysesn
51201 082'8EL°) 8/9F%iC G18'¢89'L g1l'a/8't G94°6s Buuufag - siusieanbs yseo pue ysen
919'960°) Lyl'88z 221’608 ¥85'68¢ {£95'0z9'1)  (Epv')) sjuajeAlnbs ysed pue
Useo Ul (asearnsn) asesndl JaN
2¥9'896 ZrB8'609 BYEEZE £EL'L/S 482221 80L7CE e Buliseaul Aq (pasn) papinoid yses 1o
g¥9'cs vP¥ 695 L29'02E EELIG {g09'}) (687'5) sBUILLIES JUBLISOAL|
- 96E°0F TLL2 00v'Z GB0'PTL 9658 {asuadxa) swoou) Buneado-uoy
000'6.¢8 - - - - - SPUNY JBUI0 0] SBJUEADE UC PaAISdad SjuswWAed
SAUALLOY DNILSIANI WONS SMOTd HSVD
saliAE Suueuly paleal pueg
- 668°¢SL LTP'ESL 965' P68 {99165 L) [eydes Ag (pasn) pepiacid yseo JaN
- (287112} (EL8°pb) (B0L"L6) (CET] sjesse {e}ded jo uogisinboy
- {BLY'E18) (L2112} (g8z'39%) - 198 fendeD uo jsase
- {Lep'15p's) {zog'ss0'1z)  (LEF'LGHL) SIUBUILIBAOD) JBUID O} SOIUBAPY
- 0¥0°G08 - 0v0'G0S SPUN) J84I0 WOH SOUBAPRY
- 065'005°2 £E8'PO0ZZ  0BS'00S'T Jaaq) [erden wel spaesaid
SALLIALLDY ONIDNYNIZ d3Lv1a
ONV TYLIdYD WONd SMOTd HEVD
- {cze’oeL' 1) {gLe’e) (¥16'0) Zzoi60l)  (tog'izL) a(eAINba ey Joy pred - o Jgjsuel]
SHILIALLDY DNIDNVNI4
TYLIdYINON WOMd SMO1Z HEVD
896°/71L AT Li176ET BY0'0LL YR PST L sapagoe Bupesado
(Ut pasn) Aq papinoid $moy YSED JaN
- (566°L581) (Co0'v8) ... (000'98) (000PE) {6656} POSN $AVIAIBS PUNKIBJUL 10} SIUBLIARY
- (gzz'ass) (659'08%) 086'Z8v) {0y 'o6p) {g9z'c/¥) saadodws o) sjuaLIAeg
(0g0/8¢'e) (6zg'coc's) ‘ (Bg1'208'e) (0g9'228'c)  {(1LZ9'96%'C) siaiddns 0} spuaufed
- 5% 452 - B9G8'L4T 25262 papin0.d sa01n9s punusiul o) s1dinosy
210°626'¢ ¢ L48'1EE'8 $ £6¥'E80'c §  iv4'6sZ'c % 895'PGE'Y $ 0££'690°S ¢ $I3SN pue SIBL0JEND Wey Sidiansy
SIILIALLOY ONILYHIJO WOXHS SMOTTd HSVD
spun4 asjalag S{e0 ) JB3A 1011 Jeaj juaiing 1B3A 10lid Jea juanng
el 183 13Mag lamag Amn Ausn
- SanIAnRgY 3INYD Aeyves MAeyues 13)BAN 43180
|EJIBWILIBAQL) spund astdisug -~ saipAnsy adA-ssauisng

| HGILXS

(z10Z ‘L¢ 19qWadaq papus Jealk ay} 1o} UORBULIO] SAJRIRAWIOD U)M)
£10Z ‘LE Jaqualag popug Jes)
spunyg fiejaudodd
SMOJd USED) JO JUaWwa)e)g
NISNOJSIM ‘NITMNYYd 40 ALID



g¢ abed

‘sjusLWIalels [eloueUy aL) o} sajou Buidueduiodoe sag

salued |jeulsixa Ag
paoueuy Jo/pue pajlelsul Jued Al 4o 180D
salIAnoY fepide) ysesuoN

soaijagoe Bunelado
(u1 pasn} Aq papiaoid smop} yseo japy
syuswisnipe jejo |
saouasqge palesuadion
sisodep Jawloisny
spuny Jayjo 0 ang
sjuawaA0b 1ay3o 01 ang
safljiqel| paniddy
s|qeAed sjunodoy
saljiger ul {(9seaJ20p) aseaiol|
sjuawulanch Jau1o wol angg
sSpuny Iayjo wol ang
asuadxa predald
a|qeAlaaal saxe |
8jqEeAI908. SIUNOIDY
slosse U] 9889.00p (aseaiou))
sSpuny 1sYjo 0 pajeoo]|e ucnenaldag]
uoiemaidac
salyanoe Buieredo Aq papiacid SMOj USED
12u 0] (sso]) swoaul Bupelado sjoucoal 0} sjuausnipy
{ss0)) swosul Sunelsdo
sanAloe Bunessdo Ag papiaoid ysea
}au o} (ss50|) swooul Sueiado JO UOIRIIOUOIDY

- $ LoLiBLl'L & - $ v/160. $ ZLB'LS ¢ /26'/8% &
996'/2L $ §.2G. $ 224682 % (L48'64L°L) § p00LL $ 9ov8pSZL ¢
9LL'prl LBY'PZ 793'9¢y (Go8'z.9) 0SG'Z/Y 9556°/68
- +06'6 (zzg'ol) 256t (zzs'ol) 2G6'P
- 002 - - 80¢ 002
- (198°1EL) (646'601'1) LLB0L (BPL'es) (zes'zyl)
- 75908 - - (+59'98) 759°08
18¢9z (o02) £SP'e 9/9'L (PGL) (z8e'2)
Z.0°€9 (125'226"')) 501°'500'L (gol'peg’L)  (/ZBC'BOE) 18541
- (z2g'686) {(ooo'Le) (869'¢2)
{008°25) (z0g) - -
- (0622'2¢) 805'S (585°1L)
coL'ZLL (099'1¢) (068£'09) GBE'PZ
- - (0g1'g) (8zg's)
- GIE 1YL 6£8°ZF9 090°059 SLE'260°L
(gyi'gl) ¢ 9505 ¢ (280°1L02) ¢ (9017908 1B¥'/62 ¢ 062'.G¢ &
SPUN4 921A188 8|10 ] lea ) 104 uauanng Jeg ) Joud Je@) jua.Lng
leusayLg BLCTN 1amag ramag Ann Ann
- SBMANDY juasng Aleyues Aejueg A91EA lajepn
[EJUSWLLIBACS spund asudiaug - saialay sdAy-ssauisng
(Z10Z ‘L€ Jaquiadaq papua Jeak ayj 1o} uoljewlojul aaesedwon Yjim)
£10Z ‘1€ aquiaoa( papusg Jes)
spung Aiejalidoig
SMo|4 lses Jo Juswajels
NISNOODSIM ‘NITMNYHL 40 ALID
GERIQIPIEE)

I }giyx4




Exhibit J
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Gecember 31, 2013

City of Franklin
Agency Post Employment

Funds Benefits Trust
ASSETS
Cash $ 49,786,062 § 522,799
investments:
Fixed Income Securities - Corporate Bonds 675
Domestic Equities 3,127,485
International Eguities 511,926
Accounts receivable 78,913
Taxes receivable -
Total assets 4,241 808
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 23,795
Accrued liabilities - 77,182
Due to other governments 70,494 468 ~
Due to municipality - 334,647
Special deposits 161,326 -
Total liahilities $ 71,003,239 435,624
Total net position held in trust
for post empl y_ﬁa.gnt benefits $ 3,806,184

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,
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Exhibit K
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2013

City of Franklin
Post Employment
Benefits Trust

ADDITIONS
Contributions
City of Franklin 3 522,535
Retirees 3 95,487
Net investment earnings 543,777
Total additions 1,161,799
DEDUCTIONS
incurred claims 686,914
Prescription drug claims 200,276
Claims fees 15,605
Stop loss premiums less claims received (171,026)
Total deductions 731,769
Change in net position 430,030
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR
POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:
Beginning of year 3,376,154
End of year 3 3,806,184

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin's more significant accounting policies
is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in
this report. These policies, as presented, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the City conform fo
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to
governmental units. A summary of the significant accounting policies foliows:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City of Franklin. The reporting entity for the
City consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations far.which the primary
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizationsifor which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial state] ts to be misleading or
incomplete. A legally separate organization should be rep)_ ed as a component unit if
the elected ofﬂmals of the primary govemment are.financially accountable to the

: untable if it appoints a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body andi{ it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to or burdens on the primary gover’ tent. The primary government may be
financially accountable if an organizatioih>is fiscally dependent on the primary
government. A legally separate, tax e pt organization should be reported as a
component unit of a reporting entit I} of the following criteria are met (1) the
economic resources received or he the separate organization are entirely or almost
~entirely for the direct benefit o Fih primary government, its component units, or its
constituents; (2} the primary go}fernment is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise

access, a ma;onty of the"eoonomlc resources received or held by the separaie

ability to otherwise Yaccess, are 5|gmf|cant to that pnmary government. Blended
\ Aith‘i‘ough legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
government's opel tions and are reported with similar funds of the primary government.
Discretely presented component units would be reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
City. This report does not contain any discretely presented component units.

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City in 1992 to
serve as a financing vehicle for certain Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) development
within the City. The Authority is governed by a seven member board appointed by the
Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council. Although it is legally separate from the
City, the Authority is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its
sole purpose is to finance and manage certain TIF development projects for the benefit
of the City. The Authority’s operations are included in the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements and in a TIF District capital projects fund. The
Authority follows accounting policies of the City.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position (Exhibit A) and statement of activities (Exhibit B} display
information about the reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the
reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between
governmental and business-type activilies. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue and other non-exchange revenue.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods and services provided.

" expenses of a given
nses are those that are
City does not allocate all

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree that dip
segment or function are offset by program revenue. Direct &5
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment
indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activ

Program revenue includes 1) charges to customeig of applicants who purchase, use or
directly benefit from goods, services or privijegé‘s provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that dre restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular functigh.*or segment. Taxes and other items not
included amaong program revenue are repiﬁ d as general revenue. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general reverie rather than as program revenue.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the.¥eporting entity are organized into funds with a fund
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self- baTancmg accounts that constitute its assets, deferred outflows,
liabilities, deferred inflows, net position/fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses.

Separate financial s‘tatements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds with the latter being excluded from government-wide financial
statements. Major individual government funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financiat statements.

Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and

enterprise fund statementis. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the
governmental and enterprise categories.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A fund is considered major if it is the primary aperating fund of the City or meets the
following criteria:

a. Total assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, revenue, or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at
least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type.

b. The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met
the 10 percent test is at least 5 percent of the corresg‘ nding total for all
governmental and enterprise funds combined. :

¢. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund-that the City believes is
timportant to financial statement users may he repoptetd as a major fund.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund — accounts for the City’s primary eperating activities. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - accounts for -
assessments and other revenue alg
on long-term debt other than eg’r’

€source accumulation from taxes, special
“with payments made for principal and interest
se fund debt.

TIF Districts Fund — accounts foc source accumulation from tax increments and other
revenue of the TIF Districts along with payments made for capital outiay, other
expenditures, principaf{and interest on long-term debt obligations of the TIF Districts.
Each TIF District i is é ub fund of the TIF Districts Fund.

Major Enterf

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business - where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or
(b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

Water Utility Fund — accounts for operations of providing water services to City residents
and bills for those services.

Sanitary Sewer Fund — accounts for the operations of providing sanitary sewer services
for City residents and bills for those services.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
In addition the City reports: |
NonMajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than major capital projects) that are legally or policy restricted to expenditures for

specified purposes. The funds include Library Operating, Library Auxiliary, Solid
Waste Collection, St Martin’s Fair, Donation, Civic Celebrations and

Capital Projects Funds — account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase
of equipment, street replacement, acguisition of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects. The funds include Capital Outlay/:Equipment Replacement,
Capital Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility Impro /ément and Development.

Other Fund Types

Internal Service funds — account for the payment by the City for active employees of
group health and dental charges for serv;gﬁes and stop loss insurance charges and
the billing of departments or agencies ofithe City on a cost-reimbursement basis for
the services received.

Fiduciary funds — account for assefs veld by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private orgamzatt ns and/or governmental units. The fiduciary funds
include a property tax fund .an other agency fund that records the agency activity for
emergency government, quonitoring and siting activities funded by others, an escrow
fund and a post employment benefits trust fund for retiree group health costs.

CuUs, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Government-Wide Financiai Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned and
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenue,
expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-
like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are
recognhized as revenue in the year that they are levied for.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FoOcuUs, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION {continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows.
Granis and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
reguirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as
revenue when earned. Receivables are recorded as revenue when services are
performed.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been minated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this neral rule are charges
between the City's Water Utility and Sanitary Sewer fund a rious other functions of
the government. Eliminaiion of these charges would disto direct costs and program
revenue reparted for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements aré:‘reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is
recorded when it is both measurable and-&vailable. Available means collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the CltyA corisiders grant revenue to be available if they are
collected within 150 days of the end-of the current fiscal period and all other revenue to
be available if they are collected, within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures are recorded” when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
unmatured interest on lod -ferm debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and
pensicn expenditures which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be paid
with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes drerecorded the year levied as receivable and deferred inflow and are
recognized as revénue the next year when services financed by the levy are provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the period the City is
entitled to the resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City are
recorded as receivables. Amounts not available or received prior to the entitflement
period are recorded as deferred inflow.

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary
sewers, water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when
they become measurable and available. Annual installments due in future years are
recorded as receivables and deferred inflows.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION {continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Revenue susceplible to accrual includes property taxes, room taxes, public charges for
services and interest. Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfeitures,
licenses and miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurable
and available under the criteria mentioned above.

veet: Deferred inflow
year's operations. For
ere potential revenue
fa for recognition in the
received before the City

Deferred inflows are reported on the governmental funds balance :
arise from taxes levied in the current year that are for subsequen
governmental fund financial statements unearned revenues
does not meet both the "measurable” and “available™ crj
current period. Unearned revenue arises when resource
has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are reteéived prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, whenboth revenue recognition criteria
are met or when the City has a legal claim to the resotirces, the liability is removed from
the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial _statements (other than agency funds) are
reported using the economic resources «néasurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Agency fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting and do not have a meast ent focus.

Proprietary funds distinguish operatmg revenue and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenue and expensee generally result from providing services and delivering
goods in connection with the proprietary fund's principal operations. The principal
aperating revenue of th ater and Sanitary Sewer funds are charges to customers for
sales and services provided. The rates billed in the Water Utility are approved by the
Public Service Commission. Sanitary sewer charges are billed at rates established by
City policy based 3N the charges received from the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
District and local operation and maintenance expenses. The principal operating revenue
of the internal service fund is charges to other funds for group health coverage.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administration and depreciation on capital assets. Revenue and expenses not meeting
this definition are reporfed as nonoperating revenue and expenses.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (continued)

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principtes generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial stalements and reported
amounts of revenue and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could vary from those estimates.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY
1. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the:City considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three month€ griess to be cash equivalents.

The City of Franklin maintains two investmen cies. The first covers all funds except
fiduciary funds for retiree health purposes<The objective of this policy is to generate
current income, consistent with safety anid reasonable risk as defined under prudent
person rules. As operating reserves, the-quality, liquidity and maturity structure of the
portfolio are most important. The investment palicy:

a. Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of Aail by either Moody's or
Standard & Poor's. &

b. Limits an issuer to<10% or less and asset classes to 35% or less of the fair value
of the portfolio awith: the exception of U.S. Government Treasury and Agency
securities that tyave the full faith guarantee of the U.S. Government.

c. Specifies a fninimum amount of cash equivalents be maintained, an average life
of the po not exceeding 2% years and no individual issue with a maturity
exceeding seven years at the date of purchase to limit interest rate risk.

d. Limits investments highly sensitive to market changes through its duration and
diversification policies to limit interest rate risk.

e. Prohibits the investment in foreign owned securities.

f. Limits derivative investments to those with a final maturity of seven years or less.

in addition the City's investment policy restricts allowable investments to investments
that follow state statutes, section 66.0603, that limits investments to:

a. Time depaosits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, irust company or loan
association authorized to transact business in the state and maturing in three
years ar less.

b. The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

c. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)

d. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district,
village, town or school district of the State of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a
local exposition district, a local professional baseball park district, a local
professional football stadium district, a cultural arts district, or by the University of
Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority and the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.

e. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the.highest or second
highest rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rat g'agency.

f. Securities of an open-ended management investment £orfapany or investment
trust subject to various conditions and investment options.,

g. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, wit ain conditions.

The second investment policy is for its fiduciary fund retiree health purposes. The
policy:

a. Requires the investment to be in a section=]15 trust for retiree health purposes.

b. Requires compliance with the prudent pérson” standard.

c. Requires asset allocation policy that £gnsiders the liability stream of benefits, the
refationship to current and projectedrassets, the historical performance of capital
markets and the perception of future economic conditions.

d. Primary investment objectives safety, diversification and return.

e. Allows investment in varlou-s\ set classes.

f.  Limits investment in equmes “after five years to 75% of total assets to be invested.

The City manages the v '

a.

During the first elght

cars equity investments may be up to 100% of the assets.

us risks in its cash and investments as follows:

Custodial crédit'risk — investments are held by trustee or third party custodian,

— deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits are maintained
in the State LGIP or collateralized bhank balances in

amounts at teast 75% of the year end cash balances.

Credit risk — securities purchased need to have a AA or better investment rating.
Concentration of credit risk — issuer or asset class not to exceed 10% of the
market value of the portfolio with the exception of U.S. issued securities.

interest rate risk — managed by limiting the length of maturity of newly purchased
investments and limits the average life of the portfolio to control risk.

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on
quoted market prices. No investments are reported at amortized cost.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
1. Cash and Investments {(continued)

Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded in the operating
statement as increases or decreases in investment income. Investment income on
commingled investments of City accounting funds is allocated based on average
investment balances.

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of thg:State Investment
Fund (SIF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Baard. The SIF is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but:operates under the
statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF repesis the fair value of its
underiying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have th&'right to withdraw funds in
total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2013, the fairZvalue of the City's share of
LGIP assets was substantially equal {o the amount reportgd in these statements.

2. Receivables

Property taxes are levied in December on th essed value as of the prior January 1.
in addition to property taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitted to
the state government, county government“idcal school districts, technical college district
and metropalitan sewerage district. Taxgs for all other governmental units billed in the
current year for the succeeding yeaf ate reflected as receivables and due to other taxing
units on the accompanying fiduciary flinds statement of fiduciary net position.

Property tax calendar — 2013 fax

Lien date and levy a’fe December 2013
Tax bills mailed . December 2013
Payment in fult January 31, 2014

First installmier January 31, 2014
Second installment due March 31, 2014
Third instaltment due May 31, 2014
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2014
Final tax settiement with County August 20, 2014
Tax deed by County — 2013

Delinguent real estate taxes QOctober 2018

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. No
provision for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for enterprise funds
because of their right by taw to place delinquent bills on the tax roll.

During the course of operations, fransactions occur between individual funds that may
result in amounts owed between funds. Short-term interfund toans are reported as “due
to and from other funds”. Long term interfund ioans are reported as “advances from and
to other funds”.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
2. Receivables (continued)

Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are
eliminated in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activilies and the business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

In the general fund financial statements, advances to other funds are:offset equally by
nonspendable fund balance which indicates that they do not co stitute expendable
available financial resources and, therefore, are not available’ for appropriation.
Advances in all other governmental funds are classified in fund balance based on the
availability of repayments for use.

3. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

when purchased. The fuel mventory is recorded
the consumption method of accounting. -Y&
Proprietary fund inventories are generally
maintenance work. They are not for sal
considered immaterial.

@1 cost on a first-in first-out basis using
t end inventory was not significant.
d for construction and for operation and
terial and supplies on hand at year end are

Certain payments to vendors refle
are recorded as prepaid items i

costs applicable to future accounting periods and
h government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation:of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregation is
required by agreem_enis with external parties. Current liabilities payable from restricted
assets are so clas sified. The excess of restricted assets over cutrent liabilities will be
used first for eqmpment replacement. The remainder, if generated from earnings, is
shown as restricted net position.

5. Capital Assets
Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial cost of more than $1,000 for general capital assets and $10,000 for
infrastructure asseis with estimated useful lives of two years or more. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual amounts are not
available. Ponated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are
recorded at original cost, which includes material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for
the cost of funds used during construction when significant.

Page 48



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
5. Capital Assets (continued)
Government-Wide Statements (continued)

For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest capitalized equals the interest expense
incurred during construction netted against any interest from temporary investment of
borrowed fund proceeds. No net interest was capitalized during the current year. The
cost of renewals and betterments relating to retirement units is added.to plant accounts.
The cost of property replaced, retired or otherwise disposed of, | ducted from plant
accounts and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage, is charged to the
applicable function. '

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded}g@ h allocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net
position. Depreciation is provided over the assets imated useful lives using the
straight-line method of depreciation. The range of Useful lives by asset type follows:

Buildings and improvements 30-50 Years

Machinery and Equipment © 2-30 Years
Water and sewer systems 20-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-90 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statemeﬁt' tapital assets used in governmental fund cperations are
accounted for as capital gutlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used insproprietary fund operations are accounted for the same in the
government-wide state

6. Deferred ws/Outflows of Resources

N,
g

Gains or losses on prior refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt,
or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The balance at year end for
gains/losses is shown as an increase or decrease in the deferred outflow of resources
section of the statement of net position.

In governmental funds, property taxes receivable, special assessments and interest
revenue not yet due are not recognized as revenue in the current period. For the
government-wide and proprietary fund type financial statements, special assessments
and interest revenue are recognized as revenue in the current period. This leaves
property tax receivable as a deferred inflow of resources in the statement of net position.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)
7. Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employees may earn compensatory time and are granted
sick leave, severance pay and vacations in varying amounis. Only benefits considered to
be vested are disclosed in these statements. All vested compensatory time, severance
pay and vacation pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary
and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds anly if they have matured.

For example a liability, as a result of employee resignations or tetirements are payable
with expendable available resources. Payments for vested compensatory time,
severance pay and vacation pay will be made at rates in g when the benefits are
used. Accumulated vested compensatory time, severance, dy and vacation pay liabilities
are determined on the basis of current salary rates and.inciude salary related payments.
Vacation and compensatory time are used on a first=in,- first-out basis. Accordingly all
accrued amounts are considered to be due within one year. Severance due within one
year is estimated based on employee age and expected retirement.

8. Long-term Obligations/Conduit De]

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources
are reported as liabilities in the govergment-wide statements. The long-term obligations
consist of notes and bonds payabf  and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term obligations for ggveérnimental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund
financial statemenis. The face value of debt (plus any premium) is reported as other
financing sources and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures.
The proprietary fund_ai counting is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.

The City has appr ved issuance of industrial develepment revenue bonds (IDRB) for the
benefit of private “business enterprises. IDRB's are secured by mortgages or revenue
agreements on associated projects of the business enterprises. The IDRB’s do not
constitute indebtedness of the City. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities
in the financial statements.

9. Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during
the year as expenditures in the government funds. If they are not to he liguidated with
expendable available financial rescurces, no liability is recognized in governmental fund
financial statements. The related expenditure is recognized when the liability is
liquidated. Claims and judgments are recorded in the government-wide statements and
proprietary funds as expenses when the related liabilities are incurred. There were no
significant claims or judgments at year end.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
13. Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Net Investment in capital assets — Consisis of capital assets, net of accumulated
depraciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,}construction, or

improvement of those assets. Deferred cutflows of resourcessand deferred inflows
of rescurcas that are attributable to the acquisition, cons’{f gtion, or improvement
of those assets or reiated debt are also included in this gampanent of net position.
Unspent related debt proceeds are excluded fromithe calculation of net

investment in capital assets,

b. Restricted net position — Consists of restricted”

sets reduced by liahilities and
deferred inflows of resources related to thoge assets. Generally, a liability relates
to restricted assets if the asset results from a rescurce flow that also results in the
recognition of a liability or if the liability #4ilf be liguidated with the resiricted assets

reported.

c. Unrestricted net position —~ Thes amount of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liahilities, and deferrgd inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted components of
net position.

When both restricted an
policy to use restricted -

¢ unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's
sources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further
classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.
Nonspendable fund balance is that portion of fund balance that is not available for
current spending. The restricted fund balance category includes amcunts that can bhe
spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external parties. The commified fund
balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purpeses
determined by a formal action of the Common Council. Amounts in the assigned fund
halance classification are intended {o be used by the government for specific purposes
but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Unassigned fund
balance is the residual classification for the government's General Fund and includes ali
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. Also included are deficit
fund balances in other governmental funds. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same
as in the government-wide statements. For classification of Governmental Fund
balances, the City considers an expenditure to be made from the most restrictive
classification first when one or more classification is available. Assignments are made by
the City's Finance Director
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
D. AsSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)
11. Comparative Data

The basic financial statements include comparative data for the prior year for individual
enterprise funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of
the changes in financial position and operations of these funds. This comparative data is
not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with general accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the City's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 from which the
data was derived. Also, certain amounts presented in the pl’lOl’ edar ‘data have been
reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the annudl operating budget and is presented
using the same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note 1 C with the
exception of encumbrances, transfers from the“General Fund to Special Revenue Funds
and tax equivalent from the Water Utility,~ Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures
presented reflect actual (GAAP) expenditurés adjusted for expenditures liquidated under
the prior period budget and encumbrar expecied to be liquidated under the current
period budget. Actual (budgetary L ) revenue present the tax equivalent from the
Water Utility as tax revenue while GAAP basis statements present this item as a
transfer.

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, Library, Solid Waste, Capital
Qutlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital Fmprovement Street  Improvement,
Development, Sanitar Sewer and Water Utility funds. Budgets have not been formally
adapted for other g

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made during the year. The City
may authorize transfers of budget amounts within departments. Transfers between
departments and changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of
the Common Council. Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant.
Appropriations lapse at the end of the year unless specifically carried over. Carryovers
to the following year were not material. Budgets are adopted at the function level of
expenditure.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)
B. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY’S TAX LEVY

As part of Wisconsin’s Act 40 (2011), legislation was passed that limited the City’s future
tax levies. Generally, the City is limited to its prior tax levy dollar amount {(excluding TiF
districts), increased by the greater of the percentage change in the City’s equalized
value due to new construction, or 0%. Unused tax levy may not be carried forward into
the following year. Changes in debt service from one year to the next are generally
exempt from this limit.

C. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The City controls expenditures at the function level (e.g. public sfz__ ty). For the year
ended December 31, 2013 the General Fund expended $2,986, more than budget in
Culture and recreation.

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is ufilized by all funds. Each fund’s
portion of this pool is displayed on the statergént of net position and balance sheet as
cash and investments of the City. In additi vestments are separately held by several
of the funds.

Deposits in each local and area bagkigre insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000
for time and savings deposits and*$250,000 for demand deposits.

The City's bank accounts arg.also insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee
Fund in the amount of $430,000 per financial institution. However, although the fund had
reserves available at December 31, 2013, the future availability of resources to cover the
losses cannot be projeeted because provisions of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided
that the amount infthe fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the
appropriation is éxhausted at which time the fund is abolished.

The City maintains a collateral arrangement with its main bank to provide
collateralization in excess of deposits maintained at the bank. The collateral is
maintained in the form of a letter of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Cincinnati in the amount of $42,000,000. Cash and investmenis as shown on the
December 31, 2013 City of Franklin Statement of Net position are subject to the
following risks:
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Carrying Bank & Investment

Value Balances Risks
[.ocal Government Investment Pool 3 381,806 % 381,805 Credit and interest rate
Money market funds 590,123 580,123 Credit and interest rate
U.S. treasuries 1,504,223 1,504 223 Interest rate
U.S. agencies 7,016,127 7,018,127 Credit, interest rate

<and concentration of credit

=

‘Tredit, interest rate
and concentration of credit

Corporate notes 3,053,722 3,053,722

Total fixed income investments 12,546,000
Equity funds 3,639,422 Custodial
Cash and demand deposits 55,108,293 1,228,422 Custodial
Total $ 71,293,715 67,413,844

Reconciliation to the financial statements is sl

Per Statement of Net Paosition
Primary Government:

Unrestricted cash and investmer;;ts‘-; $ 17,067,528
Restricted cash and investmen) 5 277,230
Per Statement of Fiduciary Net:Pgsition - Agency Funds 49,786,062
: - Post Employment Benefits Trust _...A4162,895

$ 71,293,715

Custodial Credif Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of
a financial institution failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to the City. As of
December 31, 2013, none of the City’'s total bank balances of $51,105,494 were
uninsured and uncollateralized and therefore exposed to custodial credit risk. For
investments — Custodial cradit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. All of the City’s investments except the
Local Government Investment Pool have a tri-party relationship with the investments
held by a party independent of the party managing the investment.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fuffill its
obligation. The City’s policy requires a minimum credit rating of Aat at time of purchase.
The City’s fixed income investments subject to credit risk include agencies securities,
corporate asset backed securities, corporate bonds, government repurchase agreements
and money market funds and were rated by Moody's Investor Service.

As of December 31, 2013, 95.2% of the investments were in rated fixed income
investments and subject to credit risk. The ratings were as follows: Aag.at 74.9%, Aa2 at
8.3%, A1 at 8.6% and A3 at 8.2%. The portfolio makeup of fixeds#icome investments
was corporate securities at 18.9%, treasury and agency securitiés at 52.7%, and money
market funds at 3.6%. The Local Government Investment-Pool was 2.4% of the
investments and is not rated but is subject to credit risk tities and fixed income
mutual funds held in trust at 22.5% make up the remainder.ofithe investments.

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of credit. is the risk of loss attributed to
a large investment position in a single issuer. As‘l}i‘nf““the December 31, 2013 no issue
4hat have the full faith guarantee of the
estment Pool had a position of greater

U.8. government and the Local Government It
than ten percent of the portfolio.

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is;the risk that rising interest rates will have an
adverse impact on the fair value_: <the investments in the portfolio. The longer the
maturities in the portfolio the greaterithe risk of loss is in portfolio value.

The portfolio policy limits tt:ﬁ sk by limiting the length of permitted investments and
limits the purchase of inv,sgtrﬁEnts highly sensitive to markef changes.

As of December 31, 2 13 the City’'s fixed income investments were as follows:

Fair Investment Maturity in years
Investment type ( in thousands) Value Less than 1 1-5 Qver 5
Money market funds 5 590,123 % 580,123 % - $ -
U.S. treasuries and agencies 8,520,350 - 2,487,881 6,032,469
Corporate notes 3,053,722 1,000,714 2,053,008 -
Local government investment pool 381,805 381,805 - -
Total $ 12,546,000 § 1,972642 $ 4540889 $ 6,032,489
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)
B. RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables consist of accounts, taxes, notes and special assessments from citizens
and others. Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts. The reserve for bad
debts, principally for personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was $48,328 at
December 31, 2013. Gther than the note receivable and special assessment receivables,
ail other receivables are expected to be collected within one year.

The City has a nofe receivable with a local business in the amount of $6,195,000. Terms
of the note call for semi-annual payments of interest at 1.95% and, a final principal
payment on February 28, 2014 of $6,195,000.

The City in 2011 entered into an intergovernmental cooperatio Jreement with another
government where the other government will reimburse theg for substantially all of
the debt service costs resulting from the City taking on a State Clean Water Fund Loan.
Those reimbursements will start in 2015 and will contintie over the life of the loan,
ending in 2031.

C. RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the City's ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and
regulations of the Department of Naturaf*Resources, the Sanitary Sewer Fund — an
Enterprise Fund, incorporated an equipment replacement charge as a compoenent of the
rate structure to be used for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required
by the Wisconsin Department of atural Resources. Revenue generated from this
charge is accumulated and used, for replacement of certain equipment. The balance in
this account at December 3% 2043 is $277,230.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Batance Additions Dispositions Balance
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 25012841 % 18,321 % 73,535 § 24,858,327
Construction in progress 487 587 154,499 489,163 152,023
Total capital assets not depreciated 25,500,128 173,820 562,698 25,111,250
Capital assets depreciated: o
Buildings & improvements 24,180,167 45,325 . 24,225 492
Machinery & equipment 16,953,185 839,386 221,414 17,571,157
infrastructure 90,925,168 1,248,020 - 82 173,188
Tetal capital assets depreciated 132,058,520 221,414 133,969,837

Less: Accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings & improvements 547,712 8,579,485

Machinery & eguipment 870,948 221,414 11,004,502
Infrastructure 1,532,242 - 25 027 592
Total accumulated depreciation 2,950,902 221,414 44,611,579
Net capital assets depreciated 90,176,429 (818,171} - 89,358,258

Governmental activities capital assels

net of accumulated depreciation $ 115676,557 $_ (644,351) $§ 562,698 § 114,469,508

Depreciation expens

as charged to functions as folfows:

Governmental Activities

General govermment 3 164,843
Public safety 627,524
Public works 1,848,751
Health & human services 13,482
Culture & recreation 294 229
Conservation & development 2073

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 2,950,902
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NOTE 3 - DETALED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cantinued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Dispositions Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not depreciated:
Land $ 521,225 § - 3% - $ 521,225
Construction in progress 113,269 189,665 244 992 57 8942
Total capital assets not depreciated 634,494 189,665 244 992 579,167
Capital assets depreciated: )
Buildings & improvements 3,438,927 3,438,927
Machinery & eguipment 2,794,982 251,012 2,799,107
Infrastructure 108,555,571 35,488 109,764,750
Total capital assets depreciated 114,789,480 286,500 116,002,784
Less: Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvements 109,248 1,151,324
Machinery & equipment 151,707 251,012 1,622,312
[nfrasiructure 1,486,420 35,488 24.713,131
Total accumulated depreciation 1,747,375 286,500 27,486,767
Net capital asseis depreciated (247,571) - 88,516,017
Business-type Activities Capital ets,
Net of Accumulated Depreci $ 89,398,082 § {(57,908) § 2449092 § 89,095,184
Depreciation expense w §§=<cpz;rged to functions as follows.
Business-Type Activities:”
Water $ 1,097,315
Sewer 650,060
$ 1,747,375
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The principal purpose of these interfund balances result fram the time lag between the
dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures
occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between
funds are made. In all cases amounts are repaid within ane year.

For the statement of net position, interfund balances owed within the governmental
activities or business — type activities are netted and eliminated.

The interfund receivables and payabies at December 31, 2013 are OWS!

Receivable Fund

Capital Water Sanitary
Payabhle Fund General Projects Sewer Total
General 5 - $ - $ 65910
Water Utility 133,798 - 54,698 188,494
Sanitary Sewer - - 10,971

Totals $ 133796 757 $ 76124 $ 54698 $ 265375

The City of Franklin provides short and long term advances to its TIF Districts. The
amounts advanced are either ”’m proceeds of a barrowing or from fund reserves. They
are used to enable the TIF.Districts to carry out approved project plans and may be
replaced in the future by-direct borrowing. The TIF Districts interest rate is based upon
the interest rate inctred by the Debt Service Fund on it's barrowings or the
reinvestment rate a\’f“ ble to other funds. The advances will be repaid as the
proportionate prip dl amounts in the Debt Service Fund are due or when TIF District
resources are avajlable.

Receivable Fund

Self Capital Projects Bue within

Payable Fund General fnsurance Development Total one year
TIF Districts $ - $ 2163000 $ 1,150,000 $ 3,313,000 3 750,000
Deht Service - - 2,137,000 2,137,000 1,062,000

Sanitary Sewer 505,040 - - 505,040 -

3 505040 $§ 2163000 $ 3287000 $ 5955040 § 1,812,000

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the
fund that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt
service from the funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund and (3) use
unrestricted revenue collected in the General Fund to finance various programs
accountied for in other funds in accardance with budgetary authorizations.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Transfers during the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Transfers in
Debt Nonmajor Reclassification  Govemment-
General Service Governmentaf Enterprise Fund of Gapital Wide
Fund Fund Funds Funds Totals Ehmingtions  Contributions Tetel
Transfers Out

General Fund § - 8 - % 109982 3§ - § 108,982 {108,962)

Normajor Gavernmental Funds 194,545 368,276 957,679 - 1,526,800 {1 8;?5@;})

Entarprise Funds .
Water Utility 1,127 801 1,127,301 {487,927} 639,874
Sanitary Sewer Utility 2514 {709,174) (706,500)
Total § 138220 ¢ 366276 § 1077681 B (1638782 §  {1397.101) § {66,726)

F. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW@

Governmental funds report deferred inflows’ onnection with receivables for revenue
that are not considered to be available g liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also report deferred inflows in connection with resources that have
been received, but not yet earned. F{rp—ée”rty taxes receivable for the subsequent year are
not earned and can not be used te-liguidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of
the current fiscal year, the varicus components of deferred inflows reported in the

financial statements were asﬁfqﬂ--lé’ws:

Unavailable Unearned Total
Governmental funds:
Property taxes recei 3 - $ 24222854 § 2472223854
Interest receivable, 40,268 - 40,268
Special assessments not yet due 1,402,776 - 1,402,776
Total deferred inflows
for governmental funds 3 1443044 § 24222854 $ 25665898
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
G. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS
General Obligation Debt

Long-term labilities for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance due within

12131112 Additions Deletions 1213113 one year

Governmental Activities
General obligation debt $ 21670000 § - $ 3,790,000
Net pension cbligation - : 91,336 303,994 310,450

Sub-total 21761336 303904 4,100,450

880,000 $ 10.265.000
84.880 .

17,964,880 10,265,000

Compensated absences

Accrued vacation pay 417,780 900,307 108,195 409,872 409,872
Accrued severance pay 1,057,072 221,119 ™ 90,156 1,188,035 43,080
Accrued compensatory time 177,601 200026 _ 201838 175,789 175,789

Total compensated absences 1,652,433 152 1,200,189 1,773,696 628,721

Governmental activities

Long-term liabilities $ 23413769..% 1625446 $ 5300639 $ 19,738,576 $ 10,893,721

All general obligation notes and.| yonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of
the City. The notes and bopds will be retired by future property tax levies, special
assessment collections a,ﬁd designated landfill revenue.

The governmental g\‘é{}a} es compensated absences primarily accrue to and are paid
from the City’s General Fund.

Amounts
Balance Balance due within
12131112 Additions Deletions 12/31/13 one year
Business-type Activities
General obligation debt § 22064833 $§ 2500580 $ - $ 24565423 51,101,072
Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 39,348 41,061 34629 45780 45,780
Accrued severance pay 54,915 4 369 2,123 57,161 -
Accrued compensatory time 11,287 6,907 5,681 12,513 12,513
Business-type activities
Long-term liabilities $ 22170383 $§ 25520827 $ 42433 S 24680877 $1,158,365
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
G. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payable are as follows:

Balance
Date of Interest Principal Interest Original Outstanding
Type lssue Rate Payable Payable Amount 12/31

(General obligation promissory notes
1/3/07 4.95 3/ 1/08-14 3/1& 9/1 $ 10,000, OQ@ $ 6,195,000

8/26/08 3.00-3.50 3/1/09-14 3/M1& 9/1 3,500,000
General obligation refunding bonds

1/3/07 3.80 3/1/08-21 3M& 9/ 8,185,000
Total Governmental Activities Debt $ 17,880,000

Business-type Activity Debt
General obligation Clean Water Fund Loan

1/25112  2.462 5/1/14-31

' Issued for non capital TIF purposes 2 Issu__ ’SO% for non capital TIF purpcses

Annual principal and interest payments 6 maturity on general obligation notes and
bonds payable are as follows:
Annual principal and interestspayments to maturity on general obligation notes and
bonds payable are as follows‘s‘“'i;

Year Ending Govemmental Activities Business-type Activities
31-Dec Principal Interest Principal interest

2014 48,265,000 514,776 1,101,072 591,136
2015 520,000 279,490 1,128,180 563,804
2016 1,200,000 246,810 1,155,956 535,687
2017 1,190,000 201,400 1,184,416 506,877
2018 1,180,000 156,370 1,213,576 477,357
2019-2023 3,525 000 200,355 6,531,040 1,617,926
2024-2028 - - 7,375,586 1,082,984
2029-2031 - - 4,875,597 182,002

Total $ 17,880,000 $ 1,599,201 §$ 24565423 $ 5,837,773

The City's statutory debt limit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2013 are
$170,713,830 and $128,268,407, respectively.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
G. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS {(continued)
Conduit Debt Obligations
Twelve series of Industrial Revenue Bonds ariginally issued with an aggregate principal

amount of $124,992,000 are outstanding with a December 31, 2013 balance of
$116,038,155.

H. NET POSITIONFUND BALANCES

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities net position reported on the government-wide statement of net
position at December 31, 2013 include the following:

Net investment in capital assets

Land $ 24,958,327
Construction in process 152,823
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreoratqon 89,358,258
Less: related long term debt ocutstanding (9,747 ,526)
Net investment in capital assets 104,721,982
Restricted for:
Debt service 682,442
Utility improvement 1,523,989
Development 5,052,168
Donations 102,326
Total restricted 7,360,925
Unresftricied 5,017,893
Total governméntal activities net position $ 118,000,800
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
H. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued)
Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2013 include the following:
Nonspendable fund balances

General Fund - Inventeries and prepaid items $ 45 866
General Fund - Advances 505,040

Library Fund - prepaid items 2,475
TIF Districts Fund - notes receivable . 6,195,000

6,748,381

Total nonspendable

Restricted fund balances

Debt Service 606,945
Donations 102,326
Development Fund- advances to other funds 3,287,000
Development 1,765,168
Utility Improvement 443,438

Total restricted 3 6,204,877

Assigned Fund balances:

Health services $ 165,846
Library services 579,817
Solid Waste 188,307
Recreational services 51,478
Capital Projects:
Capital Outlay 337,575
Equipment Replaceter 1,916,045
Capital Improvement® 318,928
Street Improvep 218,563
Total Capital Fsrojects 2,791,111
Total Assigned fund blances 3 3,776,557
Unassigned fund balances
General Fund 3 7,735,701
Debt Service - Deficit ~(2,099,712)
St Martin's Fair - Deficit (708)
TIF Districts - Deficit {3,080,379)
Total Unassigned fund balances $ 2,554,902
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
Wisconsin Retirement System

All eligible protective (public safety) City of Franklin employees participate in the
Wisconsin Retirement System {"System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit public employee retirement system ("“PERS”). All such permanent employees
expected to work over 600 hours a year, for employees hired prior to July 1, 2011 and
1200 hours a year for employees hired prior afier that date are eligible to participate in
the System. Covered employees in the protective occupations category are required by
statute to contribute 5.9% to the plan both for protective occupatlons?wﬂ“h social security,
and for protective occupations without social security.

Employers may not make these contributions to the plan 0fy"behalf of the protective
occupation employees unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining
agreement. Employers are required to contribute ansgctuarially determined amount
necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future. benefits.

b

The payroll for employees covered by the System.for the year ended December 31, 2013
was $7,582,772 and the employer's total payroll was $13,792,793. The total required
contribution for the year ended Dec:emb , 2013 was $1,653,044, or 21.8% of
covered payroll. $137,435 was paid by ployees while $1,515,609 was paid by the
employer. Of the total required contribe , 100% was contributed for the current year.
Total contributions for the years ens g December 31, 2012, and 2011 were $1,660,118
and $1,512,397, respectively whi¢h équal the required contributions for each year.

The System provides that pretective employees who retire at or after age 53 with 25
years or more of servicedor 'age 54 with less than 25 years of service are entitled to
receive retirement bengfits. Protective employees may retire at age 50 and receive
actuarially reduced “e;aeﬂts The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average
earnings, (2) yearsiof-creditable service and (3) a formula factor. Final Average Earnings
is the average of the protective employee’s three highest year's earnings. Protective
employees termmatmg covered employment hefore becoming eligible for retirement
benefits may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any
subsequent benefits. For employees beginning participation after January 1, 1990 and
no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five
years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to
1990 and on or after April 24, 1698 are immediately vesied. Participants whao initially
became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011 must have five years of creditable service
to be vested

The System also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility for and
the amount of all benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
The System issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to the
Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, W] 53707-7931.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
Plan Description
The City is also a participant in the City of Franklin Public Works Employees’ Pension
Plan, a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible public works
employees. The assets of this Plan are administered by Principal Life Insurance

Company. An annual financial report may be obtained by writing to the plan
administrator at Principat Financial Group, P.O. Box 9693, Des M'oin' - 1A 50306-9396.

Employees attaining the age of 60 are entitled to annual benefifé of 1.98% of average
compensation muliiplied by the number of years of servicestibsequent to January 1,
1956. Average compensation is defined as the monthly t i pay plus salary deferrals,
compensation and overtime received for the three coh Secutzve years out of the ten
latest years which gives the highest average, ,V_Empfoyees may retire early and
recetve reduced benefits at age 55 with at Ieasthfen years of service.

Disability benefits equivalent to expected gfits at normal retirement date are paid
until normatl retirement date, death or recovery. If an active employee dies, his or her
heneficiary receives a lump-sum cash pa“ nt equal to the participant's accumulation at

date of death or an annuity benefit deferred until participant’s earliest retirement date.

If an employee terminates his or he employment with the City, the employee has the
option of accepting either n Qla[ retirement benefits at normal retirement date, or a
lump-sum cash payment of% partlmpants vested accumulations. An employee becomes
50% vested after five yeafsﬁ of service and 100% vested after ten years.

Employees make a_non=elective and non-discretionary pension contribution that in 2013
was 5% of payrol e City contributes all remaining amounts necessary to fund the
pension plan. Sté@zng in 2010, the City uses the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

Funding Policy
The City's funding policy has been to provide yearly contributions at actuarially

determined rates that, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are designed to
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)
Annual Pension Cost

For 2013, the City’s required contribution of $310,450 was determined during a January
1, 2013 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. The City began to
require employee coniributions, totaling $141,971 in 2013. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, combined contributions totaling $303,994 were accrued. This
resulted in the net pension obligation being reduced by $6,456. The required employer
contribution amount represented 18.4% of current year payroll compagred to the 16.8%
anticipated in the 2012 actuarial report.

The entry age normal actuarial cost method does identify
unfunded actuarial liabilities. The unfunded actuarial liabitity
20 year closed period. Significant actuarial assumptions ia : (a) a rate of return on
the investment of present and future assets ranging ofs7; compounded annually, (b)
projected salary increases of 3.00% per year compounded annually, attributable to
inflation applied using the level percentage of projaéted payroll. The assumptions do not
include post retirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of fort-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period.

separately amortize
being amortized over a

Three Year d Information
Percentage Net
Year i of APC Pension
Ending Ce,st (APC) Contributed  Obligation
12/31/2013 303,994 102.1% $ 84,880
12/31/2042 ™ 272,480 102.2% 91,336
12/31/20] 1 224,478 102.8% 97,341

The following table’shows components of the City’s annual pension cost for the year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the City’s net pension obligation:

Arninual required contribution 5 310,450
Interest on net pension obligation 6,850
Adjustment to annual required contribution (13,306)

Annual pension expense 303,954
Contributions made (310,450)

Decrease in net pension obligation (6,456)
Net pension obligation - beginning of year 91,336
Net pension obligation - end of year $ 84,880
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)

Annual Pension Cost
Funding progress

(A) (B) () (1) (E) {(F)
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded  Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability {AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered  Covered Payroll
Date Value - Aggregate [(B)-(A)] IAY(B)] Payrell KCW(EY
1/1/2013 $ 5,383,612 $6,408402 $ 1,024,783 84% $ 1,689,291 61%

The multi year trend information is located in the required s A"p-l mentary information

immediately following the notes to the financial statements.
B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Frankilin.hon-protective employees (except

public works employees) participate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan {the
‘Plan”). The Plan assets are administered by th Principal Life Insurance Company.

Employees after completing six months of gervice with the City are eligible to participate.
The Plan requires the City to make periodic contributions to each participant's account
equal to 10% of such participant's annual compensation. Employees are required to
make contributions of 5% of wage participant's accrued benefit for City contributions
is 100% vested and non forfeita le“upon death, normal retirement, early retirement or
permanent and total disability as;defined in the Plan. If employment is terminated for any
other reason, each parhcnpant‘s accrued benefit vests at various percentages, based on
years of service. Durmg,?@ﬂ?; total contributions of $388,989 or 10% of covered payroll
were made. The City, contributed $196,607 and employees $192,362. The City may
make amendments.to Plan.

C. PosT EMP OYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

The City of Franklin administers a single employer defined benefit post employment
benefit ptan through a trust. The City of Frankiin Post Employment Benefits Trust is
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting and presented as a fiduciary fund.
Separate financial statements are not prepared for the trust. Retiree and City
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due,

City of Franklin eligible full time employees meeting minimum age and service
requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced cost during the period
from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65. This results in an other post
employment benefit (OPEB) obligation for those groups. These groups commonly have
higher medical costs than anticipated in the blended premium rates. That differential is
referred to as an implicit rate subsidy.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Confribution requiremenis are established by either City ordinance or collective
bargaining and may be amended only by the groups establishing the requirements. The
City's periodic contribution is determined and fixed at the time of retirement. The retiree
pays the balance of the periodic blended premium. The eligibility for the benefit follows:

Employee Group # City Amount Age Years Service
Non-represented 35 75% of Premium at Retirement 20
Police 66 75% of Premium at Retirement 15
Dispatch 13 75% of 2005 Premium 20
Fire 55 75% of Premium at Retirement 20
DPW 30 75% of Premium at Retirement 15

The City’s annual other post employment benefit (OPEB pense is calculated based
upon the annuatl required contribution (ARC) of the City.: An actuarial calculation by an
actuary was used to calculate the ARC and related .information using the measurement
method required by GASE Statement No. 45 for employers with 200 or more total plan
members. The ARC represents a level of fundmg that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal cost each y'ar “and amortize any unfunded actuar;al
liabilities over a closed period of 30 years following table shows the components of
the City's annual OPEB cost for the year,«the amount actually contributed to the trust
and changes in the City’s net OBEB ob igation for retiree health benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 523,342
Interest on net OPEB obllganon -
Adjustment io annual requued ‘contribution -

Annual OPEB exp n~se 523,342
Contributions made (523,342)

Increase in net GPEB obligation -
Net OPEB gb! ggﬁﬁn - beginning of year -
Net OPEB é&hligation - end of year $ -

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
trust and the net OPEB obligation for the current and prior two years were as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net

Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/2013  § 523,342 100.0% 3 -
12/31/2012 837,535 100.0% -
12/31/2011 822,537 100.0% -
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. PosST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Funding progress:

{A) (B) (€) (B) {E) {F}
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value Projected unit credi [(B)-{AY] [(AY(BI] Payroll [{CY(EN

11/2012  $2,399,455 § 8,184,388 § 5,784,833 29% § 11,553,445 50%

The multi year trend information is located in the required suﬁ-p%mentary information
immediately following the notes fo the financial statemen he projection of future
benefits for an ongoing benefit involves estimates for the of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of eventgifar into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality.and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funding statusgefﬁtjhé trust and required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision-as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made.about the future.

The schedule of funding progress, pres
presents multi-year trend information t
assets is increasing or decreasing ove
for benefits.

d immediately following the footnotes,
shows whether the actuarial value of trust
ime relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities

The above schedules of emmcyer contributions present trend information about the
amounts contributed to thesfrust by the City in comparison to the ARC, an amount
actuarially determined | ’*’"accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement Nao. 43.
The ARC represents g _level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projecied to
cover normal costs ach year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities {or
funding excess) over a closed period of thirty years.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purnoses are based upon the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the City and plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing
benefit costs between the City and plan members to that point. The methods and
assumptions used include technigues that are designed to reduce short term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long
term perspective of the calculations.

The trust’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Retiree and City contributions are recognized in the period that contributions are due.
The City has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and
refunds are recognized when due and payable. Investments are reported at fair value
with the valuation determined by the independent custodian of the assets.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)
The following significant assumptions were made:
The actuarial valuation uses the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.
The ARC was calculated using the level parcentage of payroll method, amortizing costs

over a closed period of 30 years. The remaining amoriization period at December 31,
2013 was 24 years.

Based upon the expected return of the City of Franklin Post Employa em Benefits Trust
under the investment policy adopted for the Trust, a discount rate of 7% was used.

The actuarial value of the trust assets is determined usmg
impact of short term volatility over a five year period.

niques that spread the

Group health charges for actives and retirees were U as the basis for calculation of

the present value of total benefits to be paid.

The expected healthcare trend rate of increase™in group health charges was based upon
the recent experience of the City of Frankll -self funded health care program. The trend
rate assumption of 8.5% for years one anditwo, 8.0% for years three and four, reduced
to an ultimate rate of 5.5% after thirteey’ rs, was used.

The expected long term payro

gfowth rate was assumed to be 3% which is the
expected inflation rate for the City.

No post-retirement benefifincreases other than salary increases are anticipated.

Rates of retirement, * QTtallty and termination for reasons other than retirement and
death are from the €Wisconsin Retirement System 2003-2005 Experience Study’.

Marital status at retifement was assumed to be 75% with a spouse or dependants.

Page 71



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City at times is party to claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome of such
matters in not presently determinable, it is the opinion of City management and the City
attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a
material adverse effect on the City's financial position.

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursements to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed. under terms of the
grants. Management believes such disallowances, if any, would bg irmmaterial.

The City has $2,122,647 in ouistanding confractual commitments relating to various
Public Works projects and equipment purchases at Decemb&r 31, 2013. The City has
encumbered $89,186 at year end due to valid contacts opy urchase orders in place and
the related services committed and not yet received.

The City receives impact fees for new developmetif‘projects. The fees are to be used to
fund specific projects within a specific period oftime. In the event the projects are not
completed or the time period elapses, the Ci be required to refund the impact fees
to the current owners of properties that the fées were originally collected.

the City comes from many sources, including
property taxes, grants and aids frg ther units of government, user fees, fines and
permits and other miscellaneous nue. The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of
aid and grant programs that. beneﬂt the City. Those aid and grant programs are
dependent on continued epprovai and funding by the Wisconsin governor and
legislature, through therrxbudget process. Any changes made by the State o funding or
eligibility of local aid prd' rams could have a significant impact on future operating results
of the City.

Funding for the operating budget o
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
E. RISK MANANGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction
of assets, errors and omissions, natural disasters, and workers' compensation claims
that the City carries commercial insurance. No significant reductions in insurance
coverage occurred for any risk of loss in the past year, and settled claims have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan to employees for which
the City is self-insured. This activity is accounted for in the City's Self lnsurance Internal
Service Fund. Group medical and dental costs are charged to Gi .y?departments and
retirees participating in the program. A third party administrator handles claims
payments. The City carries stop loss insurance for claims in excess of $60,000 per year
per individual. Liabilities are reparted when it is probable thatclaims have occurred and
the amount of the claim can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an estimated

amount for claims that have been incurred but not reportef ("IBNR").

Changes in the bafance of claims payable for the!

‘two’ years ended December 31, 2013
are as follows:

Curren
Balance Claims-
Beginning Chang. in Claims Balance
of Year Paymenis End of Year

2013
2012

$3,808,‘103 $ 3,781,003 $ 379,100
3,235,548 3,201,548 352,000

F. IMPLEMENTATION'GF GASB STATEMENTS

The City of Frarklin adopted GASB Statement No. 63 Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred inflows of Resources, and Net Pasition and GASB Statement No. 65 ltems
Previously Recognized as Assets and Liabitities as of January 1, 2012. GASB Statement
No. 63 impacted financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effects on a
government’s net position. GASB Statement No. 65 impacted financial reporting by
establishing accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The
impact of adoptions of these statements resulted in the Statement of Net Assets
becoming the Statement of Net Position. Additionally, certain items previously reported
as assets or liabilities have been reclassified and reported as deferred inflows or
outflows.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
{Unaudited)
December 31, 2013

PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Three Year Trend Information

(A) (B) (C) (D) (B) {F)
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL)} AAL (UAAL)  Ratio Covered  Covered Payroll
Date Value - Aggregate [(B-(A)]  [(AY(BY] Payroll HCY(E)
1/1/2013 § 5,383,619 $6,408402 $1,024,783 84% $ 1,689,291 61%
1/1/2012 5,096,223 5,749,642 653719  89% 1,665,439 39%
1/1/2011 4,891,672 5,219,206 327,534  94% 1,566,522 21%

CiTY OF FRANKLIN POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS’]
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRES '

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded | Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liahility {AAL) AAL (UAAL): " Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value Projectad unit credit (B)»-(A)] % {AM(B)] Payroll HCY(E)
17172012 $2,399455 § 8,184,388 $ 5784933 29% $ 11,553,445 50%
1/1/2010 1,254,758 6,016,221 1,463 21% 11,523,032 41%
1/1/2008 - 7,972,327 0% 11,725,456 68%

Note: The Trust was not yet in effect hen the first actuarial valuation was complated.

The study dated Jdanuary 1, 2008 was the study prepared for the adoption of GASB #45,

Page 74




Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
debt service or major capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes.

Library Cperating Fund — This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the Library.
Library Auxiliary Fund — This fund accounts for Library donations, fines and forfeitures.
Solid Waste Collection Fund — This fund accounts for solid waste collection activities.

Donation Fund — This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposes.

St Martin’s Fair Fund — This fund accounts for activities related™{o “the farmers/flea
market held the first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day
weekend.

Civic Celebrations Fund — This fund accounts for activity-félated to the City’s Fourth of
July and other celebrations.

Grant Fund — The City reports its grant activities irthis fund. Grant activities include Fire
Department, Police Department, Health Department, Community Development Block
Grants and miscellaneous grants received. by the City that are not accounted for
elsewhere.

Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects Funds account fo financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital faci lities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Capital Outlay Fund - Thls fu accounts for the departmental capital outlays. These
expenditures are funded fTay the tax levy, normally are less than $25,000 and are under
the direction of the depagtment supervisor.

Equipment Replaeeinent Fund — This fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement
program that aceumulates annual funding (from property taxes) for replacement of
vehicles and similar equipment in lieu of using borrowed monies.

Capital Improvement Fund — This fund accounts for land acquisitions, building projects
and all public works projects and are usually funded with borrowed money or funding
from some other source other than the tax levy.

Street Improvement Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the local road
improvement program. Funding is provided by the tax levy and a every other year local
road improvement grant from the State, and landfill siting revenues.

Utility Improvement Fund — This fund is used to account for water and sewer connection
fees that are used for water and sewer construction projects.

Development Fund — This fund is used to account for impact fees restricted for use to
capital improvements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

General Fund

Schedule of Revenue - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)

TAXES
General property taxes
Water Utility - tax equivalent
Cable TV franchise fees
Mobila home assessments
Motel room fax

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
State shared revenue
State expenditure restraint revenue
Fire insurance - dues

Local, state and federal grants and aids

Computer aid
Transportation aids
Other

LICENSES, FEES AND PERMITS

Licenses:
Beer and liquor
Bartenders
Amusement and related
Peddlers
Food and related
Electrical contractors
Dog and cat
Health
Other

Permits:
Building
Electrical
Plumbing
Sign
Park
Fire
Other

FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Schedule 3

Variance with

final budget -

Criginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 16,330,000 % 16,330,000 % 16,355,009 % 25,009
1,070,000 1,070,000 1,130,375 60,375
515,000 515,000 507,018 {7,982)
27,000 27,000 25,370 (1,630)
180,000 180,000 5191597 1,597
18,132,000 18,132,000 209,369 77,369
475,000 480,167 5167
217,100 217,114 14
115,000 118,949 4 949
307,000 348,818 41,818
1,363,000 1,362,631 (369)
65,500 42 695 (22,805)
2,542 600 2,571,374 28,774
30,000 30,000 30,940 940
16,600 16,600 16,759 159
11,500 11,500 11,630 130
2,000 2,000 1,177 (823)
42 400 42 400 43713 1,313
2,000 2,000 1,856 (144)
9,000 9,000 6,832 (2,168)
13,100 13,100 15,395 2,255
13,900 13,900 18,664 4764
422,000 436,000 553,012 117,012
74 000 74,000 83,097 9,087
63,500 63,500 84,078 20,6578
10,000 10,000 8.860 (1,140)
12,000 12,000 12,864 864
6,000 6,000 4 895 (1,105)
11,000 11,000 18,585 7,585
739,000 753,000 912,357 159,357
450,000 450,000 411,795 (38,205)

{Continued)
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Schedule 3
{concluded)
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WEISCONSIN
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue - Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with

final budget -
Qriginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government
Property reports and document fees 3 9,500 $ 9,500 3 21,083 % 11,583
Public safety
Police Depariment and related 6,000 6,000 10,411 4 471
Ambulance service 937,000 937,000 1,061,592 124,582
Fire Department and related 82,000 48,288 5,288
Quarry reimbursement 42,000 23,517 (18,483)
Weights and measures 5,800 14 512 7,712
Public works: '
Weed cutting 15,050 14,299 (751)
Street lighting 3,000 3,000 15,443 12,443
Engineering and DPW fees 37,850 37,650 20,019 (17,631)
Landfill siting fees -
Landfill tippage fees 59 59,500 42,894 (16,608)
Health and human services
Health clinics and other health fees 56,000 96,475 40,475
Conservation and development
Zoning, subdivision and other filing fees 58,000 54,506 (4,494}
1,323,500 1,323,500 1,473,039 149,539
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVI 125,C0C 125,000 162,308 37,308
INVESTMENT EARNINGS (LLOSS) 142,000 142,000 (11.514) (153,514)
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Municipal property rental 34,000 34,600 41,492 7,492
Property sales 7,500 7,800 11,984 4,384
Refunds and reimbursement 30,000 30,000 39,399 §,399
Insurance dividend 15,000 15,000 58,192 43,192
Other revenue 4,400 4,400 5,347 947
G1,000 51,000 156,414 65414
TOTAL REVENUE $ 23545100 $ 23,558,100 § 23885142 § 326,042
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General Fund

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)

CURRENT
General Government
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Adminisiraton
Finance
Avdit
Assessor
Legal counsel
Municipal buildings
Property and liability insurance
Other
Contingency
Total General Government

Public Safety
Police:
Folice
Dispatchers
Fire
Fire protection service charge
Building inspection
Sealer of weights and measures
Total Public Safety

Public Works
Engineering
Highway
Street lighting
Weed control

Taotal Public Wog

Health and Human Services
Public health

Animal control
Total Health and Human Services

Culture and Recreation
St. Martin's fair
Civic celebraticns
Senicr activities and travel program
Parks

Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development
Planning
Economic development

Total Censervation and Development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Schedule 4

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
3 26600 3 26,600 & 23,387 8 3,233
71,350 71,750 68,228 2,522
226,543 228,543 223,628 2,815
318,482 318,482 284,029 24 453
30,805 90,805 40,007 50,798
332,300 332,300 312,246 19,954
431,057 431,057 379,221 51,826
538,908 539,908 (3,380
34,500 34,500 1,235
253,469 253,464,..., 40,613
324,920 324,924, 37,273
194,379 194,379 1,279
81,050 8 (j_SO 96,800 {(15,750)
2,500 500 400 2,100
723,000 2,075 - 662,075
3,560,863 . 2,709,182 881,156
8,258,227 7,826,450 429777

1,001,344 921,858 79,488

5,899,105 5,796,116 202,989

244,300 245320 (1,020}

667,714 654,917 12,797

6,800 8,800 -

16,168,266 16175490 15,451 459 724,031
608,905 606,905 574,351 32,554
2,581,374 2,558,674 2,464 847 83,827
323,730 323,730 323,512 218
15,050 15,050 11,709 3,341
3,457,059 3,504,359 3,374,419 129,940
609,552 608,952 598,591 11,361
48,050 48,050 37,368 11,682
659,002 658,002 635,955 23,043
11,000 11,000 11,000 -
13,000 13,000 13,000 -
15,000 15,000 13,400 1,600
132,901 132,901 137,487 (4,586)
171,801 171,901 174,887 (2,9886)
393,710 383,710 347,180 46,530
14,300 14,300 13,469 831
408,010 408,010 360,649 47,361

$24,495,160 $24506,100 §22,706 655 § 1,802,545
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Schedule 5
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with

final budget -
Original Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorahle)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 1,650,000 $ 1,650,000 $ -
Special assessments - 65706 65,706
Investment earnings - ;899 7,899
Total revenue 1,650,000 1,723,605 73,805
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 620,000 620,000 -
interest 53380 409,381 (1)
Total expenditures 1,029,380 1,029,381 (1)
Excess of revenue over expenditures 620,620 694,224 73,604
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES
Transfers in P 354,380 366,278 11,896
Net change in fund balal $ 975,000 1,060,500 § 85,500

Fund balances (deficit) - begining (2,553,267)

Fund balances (defi - ending M)
;
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Schedule 6

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCORNSIN
Library Operating Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actuai
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 1,240,000 $ 1,240,000 $ 1,240,000 & -
Intergovernmental revenue 50,000 50,000 415,175 69,179.
Investment earnings (loss) 16,000 16,000 {8,319) (24,319)
Total revenue 1,306,000 1,306,000, 1,350,860 44,860
EXPENDITURES .
Current: *
Culture and recreation +1,236,856 1,199,520 37,336
Capital outlay 146,500 125,424 21,076
Total expenditures 1,383,356 1,324,944 58,412
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (46,356) (77,356) 25916 103,272
Net change in fund balances {46,356) % (77,358) 25,916 § 103,272

Adjustments to generally accepte
accounting principles basis &

2012 encumbrances {21,000)
2013 encumbrances . 10,000
Fund balances - beginning” 424,754
Fund balances - ending $§ 439,670
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Solid Waste Collection Fund

Schedule 7

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with

Original final budget -
and final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUE
User fees $1,187,000 § 1,153,672 & (33,328)
Intergovernmental revenue 69,000 7 267
Public charges for services - Landfill siting 350,000 37 (18,463)
Sales of recycling bins 5,000 4,461
Investment earnings (loss) 4,000 (11,043)
Total revenue 1,615,000~ 1,556,894 (58,106)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works 1,469,133 78,801
Total expenditures 1,469,133 78,801
Net change in fund balances 87,761 % 20,6595
Fund balances - beginning __ 100,546
3 188,307

Fund balances - ending
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Fiduciary Funds

Combining Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Schedule 8

PROPERTY TAX AGENCY FUND 12131112 Additions Deductions 1213113
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 45082478 § 098778959 $ 085139261 §$ 49,622,178
Receivables
Taxes receivable 24.433,316 70,494 4683 73,722,296 21,205,488
Accounts receivable 5,046 11,689 5,046 11,689
Total assets $ 70,420,840 3 169,285,116 § 168,866,803 $ 70,839,353
LIABILITIES )
Accounts payable $ 86,951 '3 344,885 1 86,951 $§ 344,885
Due {o other governments 70,333,888 70,494,468 70,333,889 70,494 468
Total liabilities $ 70,420,840 § 70,8;3@;853 $ 70420840 $ 70,839,353
OTHER AGENCY FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments % 35051 % 28801 % 163,886
Accounts receivable - 8,974 -
Total assets 35,951 % 37774 % 163,886
LEABILITIES
Accounts payable 6,651 % 5898 3 2,560
Special deposits 163,902 27,058 29,633 161,326
Total liabilities $ 165,710 § . 33708 § 35532 % 163,886
TOTAL AGENCY FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 46138214 § 98814510 $ 95,168,062 § 49,786,062
Receivables
Taxes receivable 24,433 316 70,494 468 73,722,296 21,205,488
Accounts receivable 14,020 11,689 14,020 11,689
Total assets $ 70,586,550 § 169,321,067 $ 168,904,377 $ 71,003,239
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 88,758 % 351,536 % 92,849 § 347,445
Due to other governments 70,333,889 70,494 468 70,333,889 70,494 468
Special deposits 163,502 27,058 29,8633 161,326
Total Habilities $ 70,586,550 $ 70,873,061 $ 70456372 $ 71,003,239
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCORSIN

TIF Districts Fund
Combining Balance Sheet
Becember 31, 2013

Schedule 10

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Note receivable
Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Long term advances
Total liabilities

PDEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Unearned revenue

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable -
Note receivable
Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances

District #3 District #4 Total
% 128647 % 103,072 § 231,719
40,268 - 40,268
1,572,197 854 727 2,526,924
6,185,000 o 6,195,000
- 1,200
$ 7936112 % 8,995 111
$ 1,4}\% °$ 149 $ 298
1,15,'@__;{300 2,163,000 3,313,000
1,_:1356%,149 2,163,149 3,313,298
612 465 954 727 2,567,192
6,195,000 - 6,195,000
{1,021 502) (2,058,877) (3,080,379)
5,173,498 (2,058,877) 3,114,621
5 7,936,112 $ 1,058,999 % 8,995 111
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Scheduie 11
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TIF Districts Fund
Schedule of TIF Districts Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2043

Bistrict #3 District #4 Total

REVENUE

Taxes $ 1,547,835 & 862296 $ 2,410,131

Intergovernmental revenue 361,741 46,504 408,245

investment earnings (loss) 125,731 (3,255) 122,478

Total revenue 2,035 307 905,545 2,840,852

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Conservation and development 40,757
Capital outlay 3,196
Debt service

FPrincipal - 3,170,000

Interest and fiscal charges 522 341 101,797 624,138

Total expenditures 4724171 113,920 3,838,091
Net change in fund balances (1,688,864) 791,625 (897,239)

6,862,362 (2,850,502) 4,011,860

Fund balances {deficit) - beginnin

Fund balances (deficit) - ending $ 5173,408 $ (2,058,877) $ 3.114.621
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Schedule 12
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Scheduie by Source
December 31, 2013

Governmental funds capital assets:

Land $ 24,058327
Buildings and improvemenis 24 225 442
Machinery and equipment 17,571,157
Infrastructure improvements 92,173,188
Construction in process 152,923

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 159,081,087

Investment in governmental capital assets by source:

General Fund $ 2,172,822
Special Revenue Funds 3,263,853
Capital Projects Funds 83,032,768
Donations 69,711,844

Total governmental funds ca)’p"t‘ assets $ 159,081,087
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Function and Activity

General Government:
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Infarmation services
Administration
Human resources
Finance
Assessor
Attorney
Municipal buildings

Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspaction
Total Public Safety

Public Works:
Engineering
Highway
Streef Lighting
Infrastructure
Construction in process

Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:

Health

Culture and Recreation:
Library
Parks

Tota! Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development:

Community development
Planning

Total Conservation and Development

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Schedule 121

Buiidings Machinery
and and infrastructure Construction

Land Improvements  Equipment Improvements In process Total
3 - 8 - 8 2,202 % - 8 - % 2,202
- - 8,584 - - 9,584
- - 36,340 - - 36,340
- - 10,042 - - 10,042
- - 36,352 . - 36,352
- - 483,348 - - 483,348
- - 253471 - - 253,471
- - 1,295 - - 1,285
- - 163,117 - - 163,117
- - 48,080 - - 46,080
- - - - 906
803,111 3,213,944 - - 4,516,594
803,111 3,213,944 - - 5,559 331
1,201,828 8,418,912 - - 12,676,234
112,013 4,189 59 - - 7,918,339
- - - - 256,567
1,313,842 12,608,502 6,026,796 - - 20,849,140
- 344 847 - - 344,847
357,407 663,251 5,369,360 - - 8,380,018
- 1,097 - - 1,697
- - 92,173,188 - 110,187,754
- - - 152,923 152 823
2,663,251 5,715,304 92 173,188 152,923 119,088,639
- - 137,200 - - 137,200
16,769 4,927 456 2,878,252 - - 7,822,487
4,442 632 812,339 286,852 - - 5,541,823
4 459 401 5,739,795 3,165,114 - - 13,364,310
- - 84 467 - - 84 467
- - 84 467 - - 84 467
§ 152,923 $ 159.081,087

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 249058327 § 24225492 § 17571157 $ 92173188
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Schedule 12.2
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Function and Activity 01/01/13 Additions Deletions 1213113
General Government:
Mayor $ 2202 5 - 3 - 3 2,202
Aldermen 9,584 - - 9,584
Municipal court 33,065 3,275 - 36,340
City clerk 10,042 - - 10,042
Elections 36,352 36,352
Information services 471,834 483,348
Administration 253,471 253,471
Human resources 1,295 1,285
Finance 60,167 163,117
Assassor 43,080 46,080
Attorney 906 906
Municipat buildings 4 531,628 4. 516 594
Total General Government 5,456,526 5,558,331
Public Safety:
Police 12,581,806~ 12,676,234
Fire 7,708,467 7,916,339
Building inspection 256,587
Total Public Safety 20,849 140
Public Works: :
Engineering # 344 847 - - 344,847
Highway 8,251,649 293,844 195,475 8,390,018
Street fighting 1,087 - - 1,087
Infrastructure 168,930,413 1,267,341 - 110,197,754
Construction in process 487,587 154,499 489 163 152,823
Total Public Works 118,055,563 1,715,684 684,638 119,086,639
Health & Human Services:
Health 133,494 3,706 - 137,200
Culture and Recreation:
Library 7,680,846 141,641 - 7,822,487
Parks 5,541,071 4 697 3,845 5,541,823
Total Culture and Recreation 13,221,917 146,338 3,945 13,364,310
Conservation and Developrment:
Community development - - - -
City development 84,467 - - 84,467
Total Conservation and Development 84,467 - - 84,467
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 157558648 & 2,306,551 % 784,112 $ 159,081,087

Page 93



STATISTICAL SECTION
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Franklin’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the basic
financtal siatements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says
about the City's overall financial health.

Financial Trends Table 1

These tables contain trend information to help the reader (
City’s financial performance and well being have changed over time

de rstand how the

Revenue Capacity Table 5

These tables contain trend information fo help,
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

reader assess the City's most
Debt Capacity Table 11

help the reader assess the affordability of the
nd the City’s ability to issue additional debt in

These tables present informationr
City’s current level of outstanding de
the future.

Demographic and Econc ic. Information Table 14

These tables - r demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the enviteanment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information Tabtle 17

These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include
information beginning in that year.
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Fiscal
year

2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004

2003

Source:

Notes:

Table 9
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Property Tax Levies and Collections
L.ast Ten Years

City Tax levy Qutstanding

Tax combined
increment Total % of levy delinguent

financing Local Total collections  collected PP taxes
$2,363,758 $§ 20,509,000 $ 22,872,758 $22,851675 99.51% $ 52481
2,560,324 20,467,000 23,027,324 22,981,469 99.80% 75,184
6,737,305 20,965,000 27,702,305 .99.98% 53,589
7,457,956 20,426,000 27,883,956 99.88% 39,718
4,829,216 20,142,000 24,971,216 99.98% 36,945
4,685,811 19,555,000 24,240,811 99.91% 45,243
3,127,116 18,501,000 21,628,116 21,641,373 100.06% 27,424
2,860,368 17,566,000 20,425?@68‘ 20,420,758 99.97% 42,150
2,925,386 16,899,300 . 19,811,739  99.93% 52,998
2,729,979 -'“‘ig,543,590 18,537,786  99.97% 65,425
2,631,082 18,237,933 18,115,165  95.33% 57,488

City of Franklin

Collections in subsequent years are not shown because Milwaukee County
annually purchases all of the City's outstanding delinguent real estate taxes.
Payment for the real estaie taxes are received by the City every August pursuant
to the County's setllement procedures. Outstanding delinquent taxes represent
personal property taxes which the City attempts further collection until March of the
following year. At that time the balances are charged back to each of the taxing
juristictions in proportion to the amounts levied. Subsequent collections are

insignificant and refunded to all taxing juristictions in relation fo the amounts
originally tevied,

Total collections may be greater than or less than the total levy in any year due
to changes in outstanding delinquent taxes, collection of prior year omitted taxes
and Wisconsin Section 70.43 corrections.
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Fiscal

ear

2013

2012

2011

2010
2009
2008
2007

2006

2005

2004

(1)

From Table 5

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
l.ast Ten Years

Table 13

: Total
(1) 5% of Debt Legal

Equalized Equalized Applicable Debt Percent

Valuation Value fo Limit Margin Used
$ 3,414,276,600 $ 170,713,830 $42,445423 §$ 128,268,407 24.86%
3,5624,105,900 176,205,295 43,734,833 1 %,470,462 24.82%
3,676,379,700 183,818,885  32,495,00 '”5%323,985 17.68%
3,670,508,700 183,525,435  39,880,000: 143,635,435 21.74%
3,812,642,600 195,632,130 150,467,13C  23.05%
3,898,387,300 194,919,365 138,839,365 28.77%
3,689,054,400 | 184,452,72 49,705,000 134,747,720  26.95%
3,481,759,700 41,600,000 132,487,685  23.90%
3,030,815,900 32,900,000 118,640,795 21.71%
2,681,845,500 24 800,000 109,297,275 18.49%

Note: Under state statutes the City's outstanding general obligation debt may not exceed
five percent of total equalized property value.
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